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Independent Auditor’'s Report

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council

City of Travelers Rest

Travelers Rest, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statésnehthe governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregatgining fund information of the City of Traveder
Rest, as of and for the year ended June 30, 20@tha related notes to the financial statements;iw
collectively comprise the City’s basic financiaht®@ments as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Staents

Management is responsible for the preparation amdpiresentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America; this inckide

the design, implementation, and maintenance ofnatecontrol relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are fremn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on thigs@ncial statements based on our audit. We coeduct
our audit in accordance with auditing standardsegaly accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits coethiin Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Thosedsteds require that we plan and perform the aodit t
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfal@tatements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtairlibevidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selecggrl on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatememtefinancial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the audtosiders internal control relevant to the erdity
preparation and fair presentation of the finanstatements in order to design audit proceduresatteat
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for tingpse of expressing an opinion on the effectivenés
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we exgs no such opinion. An audit also includes evalgat
the appropriateness of accounting policies used thedreasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evalubhgrayerall presentation of the financial statetsen



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaisedfficient and appropriate to provide a baseis f
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respects t
respective financial position of the governmentalvities and the major fund of the City of Travale
Rest, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective elangfinancial position for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America.

Other-Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in thetkkhiStates of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparisonnrdtion, schedule of proportionate share of the net
pension liability and schedule of related ratiosl aohedule of employer contributions as listedhia t
table of contents, be presented to supplementahie financial statements. Such information, algiou
not a part of the basic financial statements, cuired by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential pafinaincial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, econoaridjistorical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementafgrmation in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of Amendach consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and compgarthe information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the Hasancial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financiatetments. We do not express an opinion or provige a
assurance on the information because the limitedeglures do not provide us with sufficient evidence
to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formomnions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Travelers Res#iskr financial statements. The individual nonmajor
fund financial statements, and the schedule of ompal court fines, assessments and surcharges are
presented for purposes of additional analysis aacdhat a required part of the basic financial stetets.

The individual nonmajor fund financial statementsd athe schedule of municipal court fines,
assessments and surcharges are the responsilhilhamagement and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and otherords used to prepare the basic financial statements
Such information has been subjected to the auditingedures applied in the audit of the basic fuen
statements and certain additional procedures, dimgucomparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and otherreds used to prepare the basic financial statenmnts
to the basic financial statements themselves, #m&t additional procedures in accordance with aglit
standards generally accepted in the United Stdtésnerica. In our opinion, the individual nonmajor
fund financial statements and the schedule of dmes, assessments and surcharges are fairlylstate
all material respects, in relation to the basiaficial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing 8tiards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards have also issued our report dated December 9,
2019, on our consideration of City of Travelers tRieternal control over financial reporting and oar
tests of its compliance with certain provisiondaf's, regulations, contracts, and grant agreensends
other matters. The purpose of that report is &xdee the scope of our testing of internal contnagr
financial reporting and compliance and the resaftshat testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on qallance. That report is an integral part of aniaud
performed in accordance with Government Auditingn8tards in considering City of Travelers Rest’
internal control over financial reporting and corapte.

Fighomith & Fighomith, L2

Highsmith & Highsmith, LLC
Travelers Rest, South Carolina

December 9, 2019



CITY OF TRAVELERS REST, SOUTH CAROLINA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019

As management of the City of Travelers Rest, S@dolina (the City), we offer readers of the City’s
financial statements this narrative overview aralyais of the financial activities of the City fibre fiscal year
ended June 30, 2019. We encourage readers taleotise information presented here in conjunctigh the
accompanying financial statements and disclosotiEsving this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets and deferred outflows of the City exebdd liabilities at the close of the fiscal yeaded
June 30, 2019 by $7,534,392 (net position).

e At the close of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2069City’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $3,989,563, a decrease, 56@,777.

e As of June 30, 2019, the General Fund’'s unrestiiateassigned fund balance was $2,471,907, or
59% of total General Fund expenditures.

e The total debt of the City of Travelers Rest desed$522,495.

OVERVIEW OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Management’'s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serassan introduction to the basic financial statesent
and supplementary information. The City’s basiaficial statements are comprised of three compsnédnt
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund faranstatements, and 3) notes to the financiaéstants.
This report also contains other supplementary iédion in addition to the basic financial stateraent

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide a broad overview of thg'€finances

in a manner similar to private businesses. Theewstants provide both short-term and long-term
information about the City’s financial position. |Adssets and liabilities of the City are includedthe
statement of net position.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assetsl diabilities, with the
difference between the two being reported as nsitipn. Over time, increases and decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s nesipon changed over the most
recent fiscal year. All changes to net position raorted at the time that the underlying eveningjvise

to the change occurs, regardless of the timindhendlated cash flows. This statement also focosd®mth
the gross and net costs of the various functionthefCity, based only on direct functional revenaed
expenses. This is designed to show the extent tohvithe various functions depend on general revenue
for support.

The activities of the City are presented in twouocmhs on these statements — governmental actiatids
business-type activities. A total column for theyGs also provided. The governmental activitieslude
the City’s basic services including general goveenmpolice, fire, public works, administrative, uowil,
legal, judicial, and non-departmental. Taxes, l#8= permits and charges for services generallpostip
these activities. The business-type activitiesudelprivate sector type activities such as the’€awn
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CITY OF TRAVELERS REST, SOUTH CAROLINA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019

water and sewer system. These activities are pityrsupported by user charges and fees.
Fund Financial Statements

These statements provide more detailed informatlmyut the City’'s most significant funds — not thigyC
as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related acceuhat is used to maintain control over resourbes t
have been segregated for specific activities oeaihjes. The City uses fund accounting to ensuck an
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legaurements as well as for managerial control to
demonstrate fiduciary responsibility over the assd#tthe City. Traditional fund financial statememtre
presented for governmental funds and proprietangs$u

Governmental funds— Governmental funds are used to account for ésflgrthe same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-widaricial statements. However, unlike the government
wide financial statements, governmental fund finangtatements focus on near-term inflows and owtl

of spendable resources as well as on balancesntiaple resources available at the end of thel fisea.
Such information is useful in evaluating the Citpisar—term financing requirements. Since governatent
fund financial statements focus on near-term spaeda&sources, while the governmental activitieghan
government-wide financial statements have a lotgen-focus, a reconciliation of the differencesnmsn
the two is provided with the fund financial staternse

Proprietary funds — Proprietary funds are used to report the same ifumetpresented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statemse The proprietary fund financial statements are
prepared on the same long-term focus as the goestawide financial statements. The proprietary &ind

provide the same information as the government-firgecial statements, only with more detail.

Notes to the financial statements- The notes to the financial statements provide médion that is
essential to the full understanding of the datavided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements and should be read in conjunction \wiHihancial statements.

Other information — Governments have an option of including the btatgecomparison statements for
the General Fund and major special revenue funéglzer part of the fund financial statements wittiie
basic financial statements or as required suppleanernnformation after the notes to the financial
statements. The City has chosen to present thesggetary statements as part of the required
supplementary information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following tables and analysis discuss the fongrposition and changes to the financial posifamthe
City as a whole as of and for the years ended 30n2019 and 2018.

Net Position
As noted earlier, net position may serve over tan@ useful indicator of a government’s financ@ipon

for the City. The combined total assets of the/'€igovernmental activities and business-type &t/
exceeded liabilities by $7,534,392 at the closthefmost recent fiscal year.
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CITY OF TRAVELERS REST, SOUTH CAROLINA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019

By far, the largest portion of the City’s total ratsition (138%) reflects its investment in capaakets
(e.g. land, buildings, machinery and equipment, aglucles), less any related debt used to acghoset
assets that are still outstanding. The City usessd capital assets to provide services to citjzens
consequently, these assets oeavailable for future spending. Although the Gitynvestment in capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it shoalddied that the resources needed to repay thismedi be
provided from other sources, since the capitaltaghemselves cannot be used to liquidate thels#itiies.

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Governmental Activities ~ Business-type Activities Toth
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Current Assets
Cash and Investments $ 4,050,681 6450408 ¢ 986205 ¢ 838532 % 5036899 $ 7,288,940
Receivables and Prepaid Expenses 234,279 153,349 203,937 230,891 438,216 384,240

4,284,973 6,603,757 1,190,142 1,069,423 5475115 7,673,180

Capital Assets, net 13,259,983 10,456,664 1,865,362 2,005,002 15,125,345 12,461,666
Restricted Assets 274,695 469,983 19,413 18,945 294,108 488,928

Total Assets 17,819,651 17,530,404 3,074,917 3,093,370 20,894,568 20,623,774
Deferred Outflows of Resources 888,946 1,081,044 7,125 8,274 896,071 1,089,318

Liabilities and Net Position

Current Liabilties 1,275,651 1,083,742 56,934 29,163 1,332,585 1,112,905
Non-current Liabilties 12,304,765 12,672,738 228,944 302,464 12,533,709 12,975,202

Total Liabilties 13,580,416 13,756,480 285,878 331,627 13,866,294 14,088,107
Deferred Inflows of Resources 377,165 470,426 12,788 17,631 389,953 488,057

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 8,832,230 5,848,443 1,598,655 1,687,268 10,430,885 7,535,711
Restricted 1,517,656 4,405,241 19,413 18,945 1,537,069 4,424,186
Unrestricted (5,598,870) (5,869,142) 1,165,308 1,046,173 (4/433,562)  (4,822,969)

Total net position $ 47510168 4384542 % 2,783376% 2,752,386 $ 7534392 $ 7,136,928

The net position increased $397,464 in fiscal 9. The governmental activities increased $386,4
while the business-type activities increased $30,98let position of the City’s governmental actest is
$4,751,016, while the business-type activity i¥83,376.

$1,537,069 of the City’s net position represenseueces that are subject to restrictions on how thay be
used. Restricted net position is $1,517,656 fovegumental activities and $19,413 for business-type
activities. The remaining balance afrestricted net position, $(4,433,562) may be used to meet the City’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. ddtricted net position is $(5,598,870) for governtake
activities and $1,165,308 for business-type a@#wit



CITY OF TRAVELERS REST, SOUTH CAROLINA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019

Change in Net Position
The following table shows the revenues and expeoisége City for the fiscal year ended June 30,228id

2018.
Condensed Statement of Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Tista
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenue:
Program Revenue
Charges for Services $ 159,658 255,085 $ 259408 $ 363844 % 419,066% 618,929
Investment Earnings 13,343 30,640 3,251 1,756 16,594 32,396
General Revenue
Property Taxes, Levied for
General Purposes 2,131,142 2,141,372 - - 2,131,142 2,141,372
Accommodation Taxes 86,965 160,872 - - 86,965 160,872
Hospitality Taxes 876,904 803,952 - - 876,904 803,952
Other Taxes, Licenses and
fees 2,161,887 1,774,203 - - 2,161,887 1,774,203
Other Revenues 69,856 139,812 - - 69,856 139,812
Total Revenue 5499,755 5,305,936 262,659 365,600 5,762,414 5,671,536
Program Expenses
General Government 1,795,151 1,478,155 - - 1,795,151 1,478,155
Administrative 537,390 465,153 - - 537,390 465,153
Mayor Council 49,924 58,002 - - 49,924 58,002
Legal 6,163 831 - - 6,163 831
Municipal Court 103,736 136,935 - - 103,736 136,935
Police Department 1,343,091 1,049,950 - - 1,343,091 1,049,950
Fire Department 996,398 743,263 - - 996,398 743,263
Public Services 148,945 133,455 - - 148,945 133,455
Sanitation 249,062 217,256 - - 249,062 217,256
Interest 270,765 255,846 - - 270,765 255,846
Sewer System - - 231,669 261,087 231,669 261,087
Total Expenses 5,500,625 4,538,846 231,669 261,087 5,732,294 4,799,933
Transfers 367,344 22,500 - (22,500) 367,344 -
Change in Net Position 366,474 789,590 30,990 82,013 397,464 871,603
Net Position, Beginning 4,384,542 3,594,952 2,752,386 2,670,373 7,136,928 6,265,325
Net Position, Ending $ 4751016 $ 4,384542 $ 2,783,376 $ 2,752,386% 7,534,392% 7,136,928

Governmental activities

Governmental activities increased the City’s neitom by $397,464.
7



CITY OF TRAVELERS REST, SOUTH CAROLINA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019

Sources of Revenue - Governmental Activities

Miscellaneous Investment Local
Revenues 1.27% £amings 0.24% Accommodations
Taxes 1.58%
Charges for Services
2.90%

Government-Wide Expenses by Activity

Interest on Long-term Debt, 4.72%

Legal, 0.11% Sewer System, 4.04%

Administrative, 9.37% Sanitation, 4.34%

Mayor/Council, 0.87%

Public Services, 2.60%

Municipal Court, 1.81%



CITY OF TRAVELERS REST, SOUTH CAROLINA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

As previously mentioned, the City uses fund acdagrnio ensure and demonstrate compliance with fiean
related legal requirements. The following is a fodescussion of the financial highlights from thend
financial statements.

Governmental funds— The focus of the City’s governmental funds igptovide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable ressur Such information is useful in assessing titgsC
financing requirements. Unreserved fund balancg ssve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end digbal year.

The City’s total governmental funds reported a ciorb ending fund balance of $3,989,563 a decrefse o
$2,550,777 in comparison with the prior year. Resd fund balance of $1,517,656 is consideredaitable

for appropriation for general operations. These wt® are restrictedor recreation and tourism, capital
projects, and other purposes.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of @iy and accounts for the major functions of the
government including general government, admirisga mayor/council, legal, municipal court, police
public services, fire and sanitation. The fundibeé increased $140,933 (5.4%) during the cunsoalfyear.

Hospitality tax fund balance decreased by $97,36dcal accommodations tax fund balance increased by
$68,482. Capital project fund balance decreaseblt§66,260 as a result of capital outlay for Cigll and
Police Station. Fireman’s relief fund balance éased by $3,432.

Proprietary funds — The City’s sewer system fund is the sole propryetiand. The proprietary fund financial
statements provide the same type of informatiomdoun the government-wide financial statements,ibut
more detail. The total net position of the sewerdf was $2,783,376, of which $1,598,655 is invegted
capital assets, net of related debt and $19,418&siscted for capital projects. The remainingl$5,308 is
unrestricted.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The City’s annual budget is the legally adoptedeexiiture control document of the City. This stateime
compares the original adopted budget, the finagbtudnd the actual revenues and expenditures poepara
budgetary basis. Amendments to the adopted budggtaccur throughout the year in a legally permissib
manner.

The actual general fund revenues were more thagebed revenues by $273,151. Expenditures came in
$107,227 under budgeted amounts.

The following table summarized budgeted revenueseapenditures for the general fund for the yeaded
June 30, 2019 and 2018:



CITY OF TRAVELERS REST, SOUTH CAROLINA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenues
Property Taxes $ 2,080,000 1,989,000 $ 2,131,142 $ 2,141,372 $ 51,142 $ 152,372
Fee in Lieu 160,000 160,000 160,000 160,000 - -
Accommodations Tax 39,000 32,000 (16,036) 38,720 (55,036) 6,720
Manufacturers Tax 43,000 44,000 43,641 44,163 641 163
Merchants Inventory Tax 15,000 20,000 18,977 18,977 3,977 (1,023)
Telecommuications Tax 20,000 20,000 17,453 19,459 (2,547) (541)
Business License 360,000 341,000 435,694 298,486 75,694 (42,514)
Franchise Taxes (Fees) 580,000 580,875 605,118 583,845 25,118 2,970
Insurance Fees 580,000 550,000 712,709 626,130 132,709 76,130
Building Permits and Inspection Fees 66,000 60,000 111,946 51,711 45,946 (8,289)
Fines and Forfeitures 60,000 74,000 33,734 45,975 (26,266) (28,025)
Investment Income 2,000 2,000 4,972 2,632 2,972 632
School District 28,000 28,000 28,000 42,000 - 14,000
Aid to Subdivisions 85,000 85,000 104,627 103,359 19,627 18,359
Public Works Fees 42,000 40,000 41,180 40,540 (820) 540
Other Income 52,500 48,500 52,494 46,002 (6) (2,498)
Total Revenues 4,212,500 4,074,375 4,485,651 4,263,371 273,151 188,996
Expenditures
Administrative 325,100 324,100 343,416 298,714 (18,316) 25,386
Mayor/Council 58,800 62,800 49,924 58,002 8,876 4,798
Legal 5,000 5,000 6,163 831 (1,163) 4,169
General Government 1,142,650 1,075,400 1,133,834 1,053,920 8,816 21,480
Municipal Court 185,725 184,900 103,607 136,935 82,118 47,965
Police 1,021,200 1,009,200 986,872 978,416 34,328 30,784
Public Works 148,375 139,700 147,336 133,455 1,039 6,245
Fire Department 762,100 742,300 761,060 709,427 1,040 32,873
Sanitation 222,000 220,000 241,798 209,356 (19,798) 10,644
Capital Outlays 163,250 127,600 121,205 126,452 42,045 1,148
Payments on long-term debt 286,875 280,875 318,633 274,902 (31,758) 5,973
Transfers (108,575) (97,500) 130,870 (98,746) (239,445) 1,246
Total Expenditures 4,212,500 4,074,375 4,344,718 3,881,664 (132,218) 192,711
Excess (Deficiency) $ - $ - 140,933 $ 381,707 $ 140,933 $ 381,707

The above budget to actual comparisons reflectsdheGAAP budgetary basis of accounting.
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CITY OF TRAVELERS REST, SOUTH CAROLINA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019

CAPITAL ASSETS

The City’s investment in capital assets net of aadated depreciation for its government-wide atésias of
June 30, 2019, is $15,125,345. This is an increds$2,663,679 from the June 30, 2018, balance of
$12,461,666This investment in capital assets includes landstraction in progress, buildings, equipment,
improvements, and infrastructure. The major chpgaet additions included the purchase of poled@cles
and construction in progress for City Hall and &olbtation.

Capital Assets
Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Non-Depreciable Assets:

Land $ 928,518 $ 928,518 $ - $ - % 928,518 $ 928,518

Construction in Progress - 2,810,774 - - - 2,810,774
Depreciable Assets:

Buiding & Improvements 9,712,596 4,163,310 - - 9,712,596 4,163,310

Improvements (Downtown

Streetscape) 1,915,827 2,220,005 - 1,915,827 2,220,005

Sewer System - - 1,865,362 2,005,002 1,865,362 2,005,002

Equipment 111,174 71,622 - - 111,174 71,622

Vehicles 189,458 195,165 - - 189,458 195,165

Furniture and Fixtures 345,705 4,561 - - 345,705 4,561

Intangibles 56,705 62,709 - - 56,705 62,709
Total $ 13,259,983 $ 10,456,664 $ 1,865,362 $ 2,005002 $ 15,125,345% 12,461,666

Additional information on the City’s capital asse#s be found in the Notes to Financial Statemaritote 5.
DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At year-end the City had total long-term obligatioof $13,291,439. Of this amount, $45,953 is ganer
obligation debt to be paid from the general opegatind. $4,552,000 comprises revenue bonds tepsad
from the general fund revenues and local hospitdit revenues. Net pension liability represe3t€&7,889
of total long-term obligations. Also included Hettotal long-term obligations is $94,082 in bondebit and
an additional $172,625 in long-term debt, both ¢orépaid from sewer revenues. The obligation dituré
employee compensated absences is estimated a0$357,

Additional information on the City’s long-term dets#n be found in the Notes to Financial Statemarote
6.
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CITY OF TRAVELERS REST, SOUTH CAROLINA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

In the fiscal year 2020 budget, general fund regerare budgeted to increase which is up from tH® 20
budgeted increase of 8.67%. General fund progergs make up about 49% of general fund budgeted
revenues and are projected to remain about the fear2@19, compared to fiscal year 2019 actual @riyptax
revenues. Budgeted revenues for the sewer systadhirf fiscal year 2020 are projected to incre&e®ia.6%
from fiscal year 2019 actual revenues. The locapftality tax fund and local accommodations tamdfu
revenues are projected to increase, and the reveruge (under) expenditures is projected to inerdpsa
combined $29,625 for fiscal year ending June 32020

Contacting the City’s financial management
This financial report is designed to provide a gaheverview of the City’s finances for all thosétlwan
interest in the City’s finances. Questions conicgriany of the information provided in this reportrequests

for additional financial information should be aelsed to the City Administrator at 125 TrailblaReive,
Travelers Rest, South Carolina, 29690.
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City of TravelersRest, South Carolina

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

Primary Gover nment

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets

Cash and Investments $ 4,050,694 $ 986,205 $ 5,036,899
Property Taxes Receivable, Net of Allowance 47,318 - 47,318
Accounts Receivable 356,729 16,926 373,655
Prepaid Expenses - 17,243 17,243
Interfund Balances (169,768) 169,768 -
Restricted assets:

Cash and Investments 274,695 19,413 294,108
Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 928,518 - 928,518

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 12,331,465 1,865,362 14,196,827

Total Assets $ 17,819,651 $ 3,074,917 $ 20,894,568
Deferred Outflows of Resour ces - Pensions $ 888,946 7,125 896,071
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 314,227 $ 4750 $ 318,977
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses -

Payable from Restricted Assets 245,422 - 245,422
Unearned Revenue 10,456 - 10,456
Long-term Liabilities:

Due Within One Y ear

Accrued Compensated Absences 221,396 - 221,396

Bonds Payable 475,320 33,542 508,862

Loan Payable 8,830 18,642 27,472

Duein More Than One Y ear

Accrued Compensated Absences 135,694 - 135,694

Bonds Payable 8,458,480 60,540 8,519,020

Loan Payable 37,123 153,983 191,106

Net pension liability 3,673,468 14,421 3,687,889

Total Liabilities $ 13,580,416 285,878 13,866,294
Deferred Inflows of Resour ces - Pensions $ 377,165 12,788 389,953
Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 8,832,230 1,598,655 10,430,885
Restricted for:

Capital Projects - 19,413 19,413

Recreation and Tourism 1,244,161 - 1,244,161

Other Purposes 273,495 - 273,495
Unrestricted (5,598,870) 1,165,308 (4,433,562)

Total Net Position $ 4,751,016 $ 2,783,376 $ 7,534,392

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 13



Functions/Programs
Primary Government
Governmental activities:
Administrative
Mayor/Council
Lega
General Government
Municipal Court
Palice
Public Services
Fire
Sanitation
Interest on Long-Term Liabilities

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Utility System

Total Primary Gover nment

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

City of TravelersRest, South Carolina

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changesin Net Position

Operating Capital
Chargesfor Grantsand Grantsand Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Totals

$ (537,390) $ - $ -8 - % (537,390) $ -8 (537,390)
(49,924) - - - (49,924) - (49,924)
(6,163) - - - (6,163) - (6,163)
(1,795,151) 125,924 - - (1,669,227) - (1,669,227)
(103,736) 33,734 - - (70,002) - (70,002)
(1,343,091) - - - (1,343,091) - (1,343,091)
(148,945) - - - (148,945) - (148,945)
(996,398) - - - (996,398) - (996,398)
(249,062) - - - (249,062) - (249,062)
(270,765) - - - (270,765) - (270,765)
(5,500,625) 159,658 - - (5,340,967) - (5,340,967)
(231,669) 259,408 - - - 27,739 27,739
$ (5,732,294) $ 419,066 $ - $ - (5,340,967) 27,739 (5,313,228)

General revenues and transfers:

Taxes

Property Taxes, Levied for General Purpose 2,131,142 - 2,131,142
Accommodations Taxes 86,965 - 86,965
Hospitality Taxes 876,904 - 876,904
Other Taxes, Licenses, and Fees 2,161,887 - 2,161,887
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 13,343 3,251 16,594
Miscellaneous 69,856 - 69,856
Transfers 367,344 - 367,344
Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 5,707,441 3,251 5,710,692
Change in net position 366,474 30,990 397,464
Net position, beginning 4,384,542 2,752,386 7,136,928
Net position, ending $ 4751,016 $ 2,783,376 $ 7,534,392
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City of TravelersRest, South Carolina

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

Other Total
General Hospitality =~ Accommodations  Capital Projects  Governmental ~ Governmental
Fund Tax Fund Tax Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and Investments $ 2,850,191 $ 878,278 $ 322,225 $ - $ - $ 4,050,694
Receivables:
Property Taxes Receivable, Net of Allowance 47,318 - - - - 47,318
Accounts Receivable 267,495 80,387 8,847 - - 356,729
Due from other funds 30,206 3,310 - 33,516
Prepaid Expenses - - - - - -
Restricted Assets: .
Cash and Cash Equivalents 245,422 - - - 29,273 274,695
Total assets $ 3,440,632 $ 958,665 $ 334,382 $ - $ 29,273 $ 4,762,952
Liabilitiesand Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 297,657 $ 16,570 $ - % - 3% - % 314,227
Deferred Revenue 10,456 - - - - 10,456
Inferfund Balances 169,768 32,316 - - 1,200 203,284
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 245,422 - - - - 245,422
Total liabilities 723,303 48,886 - - 1,200 773,389
Fund balances:
Nonspendable for:
Prepaid Expenses - - - - - -
Restricted for:
Recreation and Tourism - 909,779 334,382 - - 1,244,161
Capital projects - - - - - -
Other Purposes 245,422 - - - 28,073 273,495
Unassigned 2,471,907 - - - - 2,471,907
Total fund balances 2,717,329 909,779 334,382 - 28,073 3,989,563
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 3,440,632 $ 958,665 $ 334,382 $ - $ 29,273 $ 4,762,952

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 15



City of TravelersRest, South Carolina

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

Tota fund balance - Governmental Funds $ 3,989,563

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore, are note reported in these funds.
Costs of capital assets 20,408,925
Accumulated depreciation (7,148,942) 13,259,983

Pension related amounts, including the proportionate share of the collective
net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred
inflows of resources, are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported asliabilities in the funds. Pension amounts
at year end consist of:

Aggregate proportionate share of collective pension liahility (3,673,468)
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 888,946
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (377,165) (3,161,687)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in these funds.

Compensated absences (357,090)

Bonds payable (8,933,800)

Loan payable (45,953) (9,336,843)
Total net position of Governmental Activities $ 4,751,016

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 16



City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Other Total
General Hospitality =~ Accommodations  Capital Projects ~ Governmental Governmental
Fund Tax Fund Tax Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Property Taxes $ 2,131,142% - - $ - -8 2,131,142
Accommodations Tax (16,036) - 103,001 - - 86,965
Manufacturers Tax 43,641 - - - - 43,641
Merchant's Inventory Tax 18,977 - - - - 18,977
Telecommunications Tax 17,453 - - - - 17,453
Business Licenses 435,694 - - - - 435,694
Fee in Lieu 160,000 - - - - 160,000
Franchise Taxes (Fees) 605,118 - - - - 605,118
Insurance Fees 712,709 - - - - 712,709
Building Permits and Inspection Fees 111,946 - - - - 111,946
Fines and Forfeitures 33,734 - - - - 33,734
Investment Income 4,972 975 2,901 4,439 56 13,343
Rental Income - 4,700 - - - 4,700
Aid to Subdivisions 104,627 - - - - 104,627
Hospitality Tax - 876,904 - - - 876,904
Public Works Fee 41,180 - - - - 41,180
County Recreation 31,766 - - - - 31,766
Other Revenues 48,728 6,900 - - 14,228 69,856
Total Revenues 4,485,651 889,479 105,902 4,439 14,284 5,499,755
Expenditures
Current:
Administrative 343,416 172,283 17,420 - - 533,119
Mayor/Council 49,924 - - - - 49,924
Legal 6,163 - - - - 6,163
General Government 1,133,834 - - - - 1,133,834
Municpal Court 103,607 - - - - 103,607
Police 986,872 - - - - 986,872
Public Services 147,336 - - - - 147,336
Fire 761,060 - - - 10,852 771,912
Sanitation 241,798 - - - - 241,798
Capital outlay 121,205 - - 3,579,873 - 3,701,078
Debt service
Principal 176,139 295,329 - - - 471,468
Interest 142,494 128,271 - - - 270,765
Total expenditures 4,213,848 595,883 17,420 3,579,873 10,852 8,417,876
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 271,803 293,596 88,482 (3,575,434) 3,432 (2,918,121)
Other Financing Sour ces (Uses)
Transfers from (to) other funds (130,870) (390,960) (20,000) 909,174 - 367,344
Total other financing sources (uses) (130,870) (390,960) (20,000) 909,174 - 367,344
Net change in fund balance 140,933 (97,364) 68,482 (2,666,260) 3,432 (2,550,777)
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,576,396 1,007,143 265,900 2,666,260 24,641 6,540,340
Fund balance, end of yt $ 2,717,32' $ 909,77¢ $ 334,38. $ - $ 28,07 $ 3,989,56:
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 17



City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changesin Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund bal ances-total governmental funds $ (2,550,777)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assetsis allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. Thisisthe amount by
which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period. 2,803,319

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences, are not due and payablein
the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Compensated absences (229,857)
Bonds Payable 462,811
Loan payable 8,657

Net revenues and expenses in the statement of activities that do not provide
or use current financial resources are not reported in these funds. (127,679)

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 366,474

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 18



City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2019

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $
Receivables, Net of Allowance
Prepaid Expenses
Interfund Balances
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Assets, Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets $
Deferred Outflows of Resour ces - Pensions

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Loan Payable - Current
Bonds Payable - Current
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Loan Payable
Bonds Payable
Net Pension Liability
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred I nflows of Resour ces - Pensions

Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for Capital Projects
Unrestricted
Total net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 19

986,205
16,926
17,243

169,768

1,190,142

19,413
1,865,362

1,884,775

3,074,917

7,125

4,750
18,642
33,542

56,934

153,983
60,540
14,421

228,944

285,878

12,788

1,598,655
19,413
1,165,308

2,783,376




City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Net Position

Proprietary Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Operating Revenues
Chargesfor Services
Sewer Service Collection Fees
Sewer Tap Fees
Sewer Impact Fees
Engineer Evaluation Fee

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Maintenance and Repairs
Blockage
General Repairs
Engineering
Pump Station
ROW Clearance
Salaries
Miscellaneous
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating income
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

Investment Earnings
Interest on Long-Term Debt

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

Income Before Transfers
Transfers out
Change in net position

Net position, Beginning of Y ear
Net position, End of Y ear

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 20

251,358
5,200
2,400

450

259,408

3,720
3,096
4,121
23,851
5,290
20,410
7,875
156,586

224,949

34,459

3,251
(6,720)

(3,469)

30,990

30,990

2,752,386

2,783,376




City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Cash Flowsfrom Operating Activities

Receipts from customers and others $ 266,859
Payments to suppliers (26,866)
Payments to employees (20,410)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 219,583
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of capital assets (16,946)
Principal paid on capital debt (51,027)
Interest paid on capital debt (6,720)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities (74,693)
Cash Flowsfrom Investing Activities
Interest income 3,251
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 3,251
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 148,141
Balance, beginning of year (including restricted assets of $18,665) 857,477
Balance, ending of year (including restricted assets of $18,945) $ 1,005,618

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income $ 34,459
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 156,586
Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net 7,451

Prepaid expenses 1,903

Interfund balances 17,600

Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,149

Accounts payable 4,750

Net Pension Liability 529

Deferred Inflows of Resources (4,844)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 219,583

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 21



City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 — Description of Entity

The City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina, Sousinoina (the “City”) operates under a Council fooin
government and provides the following services athaized by its charter: general government,
administrative, legal, mayor/council, public seegc municipal court, police, sanitation, and fieevges.
The City also owns and operates a utility systericthvprovides sewer services. The financial stateésne
of the City include all of the above operations.

The financial statements of the City of TraveleesR South Carolina have been prepared in confprmit
with accounting principles generally accepted m thmited States of America as applied to governahent
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards BO@wiSB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing accounting and financial reportingng@ples. The City’s reporting entity applies alavant
GASB pronouncements. Proprietary funds apply HRi@nAccounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations and Accounting e Board (APB) opinions issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncementtioctamith or contradict GASB pronouncements, in
which case, GASB prevails.

Accounting principles generally accepted in thetéthiStates of America require that the reportinifyen
include (1) the primary government; (2) organizagidor which the primary government is financially
accountable; and (3) other organizations for whiehnature and significance of their relationshitnthe
primary government are such that the exclusion voautise the reporting entity’s financial statemémntse
misleading or incomplete. Based on the applicaticthese criteria, there were no organizationchvhiet
the criteria described above.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Reporting Entity

Pursuant to governmental accounting principles rgdigeaccepted in the United States of America, in
evaluating the City as a reporting entity, managemeust consider all potential component units.e Th
decision to include any potential component umtthe City’s reporting entity was based on theofelhg
criteria:

The City’s financial accountability for the poteritcomponent unit was considered. The City is
financially accountable if it appoints a voting wrdy of the governing board of the potential

component unit and (1) it is able to impose it$ @nl the potential component unit or (2) a finahcia

benefit/burden relationship exits between the @ity the potential component unit.

The potential component unit’s fiscal dependenctherCity was considered.
The nature and significance of the relationshipvben the City and the potential component unit

was considered to determine whether exclusioneptitential component unit from the reporting
entity would render the City’s financial statememisleading or incomplete.
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City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policiecontinued
The Reporting Entity, continued

Based on the above criteria, Travelers Rest Pubdicilities Corporation, a not-for-profit 5-1©(3)
organization incorporated for the specific chatéapurpose of serving as a “support organizatiar” f
capital projects of the City of Travelers Rest. aBbmembers are appointed by the City. Because the
organization exclusively benefits the City, theammgation’s financial information is blended witiat of

the City in the basic financial statements. ThgaDization does not issue separate financial séattsm

Basis of Presentation

The City’s basic financial statements consist ofggoment-wide financial statements that include a
statement of net position, a statement of acts/giied fund financial statements that provide a rdetailed
level of financial information.

Government-wide financial statements

The statement of net position and the statemeacttofities display information about the City aw/aole.
These statements include the financial activitidb@® primary government, except for fiduciary fendrhe
statements distinguish between those activitigheCity that are governmental in nature, whichmadly

are supported by taxes and intergovernmental regenand those that are considered business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent ae$ and charges for support. The statement qfaséton
presents the financial condition of the governmieartd business-type activities of the City at yeat:

The statement of activities demonstrates the degraehich the direct expenses of a given function o

segment is offset by program revenues. Direct resg® are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenuesudell) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, isesy or privileges provided by a given function or

segment and 2) grants and contributions that ast&riated to meeting the operational or capital

requirements of a particular function or segmeiaxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as genesalues.

The government-wide financial statements are redausing the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenuegeneded when earned and expenses are recordecawhen
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing wmélated cash flows. Property taxes are recognazed
revenues in the year for which they are leviedan® and similar items are recognized as revenseas

as all eligibility requirements imposed by the pdev have been met.

Amounts reported as program revenues include:h@jges to customers or applicants for goods, ssyvic
or privileges provided; (2) operating grants andtgbutions; and (3) capital grants and contribugio
including special assessments. Internally dedicedsources are reported as general revenues tiadmer
as program revenues. Likewise, general revengkgimall taxes.
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City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policiexontinued

When both restricted and unrestricted resources\amable for use, it is the government’s polioyuse
restricted first, then unrestricted resources ag éne needed.

Fund Financial Statements

The City segregates transactions related to ceCigyrfunctions or activities in separate fundsider to
aid financial management and to demonstrate legaptiance. Fund financial statements are designed
present financial information of the City at thisma detailed level. The focus of governmental and
proprietary fund financial statements is on majordls. Each major fund is presented in a sepashimo.
Non-major funds are aggregated and presentedngle €olumn.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the government are organized amditmol on the basis of funds. A fund is an indéeen
fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancs®y of accounts that comprise its assets, liaslitiund
equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. &audinting segregates funds according to theincieie
purpose and is used to aid management in demoangtredbmpliance with finance-related legal and
contractual provisions. The minimum number of figlmaintained consistent with legal and manalgeria
requirements.

Governmental fund financial statements are repangdg the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accountiRgvenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are consitteiigel available when they are collectible withie th
current period or soon enough thereafter to payilities of the current period. For this purpotiee
government considers revenues to be availableyf éine collected within 60 days of the end of tineent
fiscal period. Property taxes collected withinstlixty-day period is an example of such revenire.
determining when to recognize intergovernmentalemeres (grants and entitlements), the legal and
contractual requirements of the individual prograres used as guidance. Revenues are recognized whe
the eligibility requirements have been met. Exjitenels generally are recorded when a liabilitynsurred,
except for debt service expenditures, as well gemitures related to compensated absences antsclai
and judgments which are recorded only when payisehie.

Property taxes, licenses, state shared revenwegs@nd interest associated with the currentlfizmaod
are all considered to be susceptible to accrualhawve been recognized as revenues of the curseal fi
period. All other revenue items are considerebetaneasurable and available only when cash isvextei
by the government, or specifically identified.

Governmental funds include the following types:

The general funds the government’s primary operating fund. kamts for all financial resources of
the general government.
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City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policiexontinued

Fund Accounting, continued

Thehospitality tax fundaccounts for collection of two percent local ressamt tax receipts that are
restricted for recreation and tourism expenditures.

Theaccommodations tax furatcounts for collection of three percent localoaemodations tax
collected from receipts from boarding or hotel BBsfiments with more than six beds. These
monies are restricted for tourism related expenses.

Thecapital projects funds used to account for and report financial resesithat are restricted,
committed or assigned to expenditure for capitélags, including the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities and other capital assets.

The proprietary fund (enterprise fundy used to account for operations (a) that arenfied and
operated in a manner similar to private businetsrgnses — where the intent of the governing bedy
that the cost (expenses, including depreciatiopy@fiding goods or services to the general pubsii@
continuing basis be financed or recovered primaitigough the user charges; or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determainaif revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or
net income is appropriate for capital maintenapablic policy, management control, accountability,
other purposes. The sewer fund is accounted fan &nterprise Fund operation.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activigs been eliminated from the government-wide firgnc
statements. Exceptions to this general rule aaegels between the government’s general fund, dpecia
revenue fund, and enterprise fund. Eliminatiotheke charges would distort the direct costs angram
revenues reported for the various functions covered

Private-sector standards of accounting and finanegerting issued prior to December 1, 1989, galher
are followed in both government-wide and proprietund financial statements to the extent that éhos
standards do not conflict with or contradict guickrf the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Governments also have the option of following sghset private-sector guidance for their busineps-ty
activities and enterprise funds, subject to theesmitation. The government has elected not tlmo
subsequent private-sector guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include Ipebdo customers or applicants for goods, servires
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and cbatrons, and 3) capital grants and contributiomsuiding
special assessments. Internally dedicated resoaregaeported as general revenues rather thaogsim
revenues. Likewise, general revenues includeadis.
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City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policiecontinued
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City considers all highly liquid investments;luding cash on hand, demand deposits and short-te
investments to be cash and cash equivalents.

Investments

The City’s investment policy is designed to openaithin existing State of South Carolina statutest t
authorize the City to invest in the following:

(1) Obligations of the United States and its agencies

(2) General obligations of the State of South Caradinany of its political units.

(3) Savings and Loan Associations to the extent thatsdime are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation.

(4) Certificates of Deposit which are collaterally secuby securities of the type described above held
by a third part as escrow agent or custodian, onaaket value not less than the amount of
certificates of deposit so secured, including ggerprovided however, such collateral shall not be
required to the extent the same are insured bgamcg of the federal government.

(5) Collateralized repurchase agreements which arateddlized by securities as set forth in this
section and held by the City or a third party as@s agent or custodian.

(6) South Carolina Pooled Investment Fund establishddraintained by the State Treasurer.

Finally, no load open-end or closed-end managertygr® investment companies or investment trusts
registered under the Investment Company Act of 1840amended, where the investment is made by a
bank or trust company or savings and loan assowiati other financial institution when acting asstee or
agent for a bond or other debt issue of that Igoakrnment unit, political subdivision, or city ef the
particular portfolio of the investment company vestment trust in with the investment is madeHhsy t
city is limited to obligation of the United StateState of South Carolina, or repurchase agreement
collateralized by the aforementioned city or stateg has among its objective to attempt to maindain
constant net asset value of one dollar a sharecatidit end, value it assets by the amortized roeshod.
Investments are stated at costs.

The City has not policy relating to investmentsdeposits that would further limit its investmentidsit
choices.

The City’s investments in the State of South Caeoliocal Government Investment Pool (the Pool) are
invested with the South Carolina State Treasur®ffice, which established the South Carolina Pool
pursuant to Section 6-6-10 of the South CarolindeCaf Laws. The Pool is an investment trust fund,
which public monies in excess of current needsckviaire under the custody of any city treasuremgr a
governing body of a political subdivision of thet®{ may be deposited. The Pool is a 2a7-like wbaih

is not registered with the Securities and Exchagamission (SEC) as an investment company, bua has
policy that it will operate in a manner consistefith the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment company A
of 1940. In accordance with GASB Statement NoAgtpunting and Financial Reporting for Certain
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City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policiecontinued

Investments, continued

Investments and for External Investment Pools,stments are carried at fair value determined ahnual
based upon quoted market prices. The total féirevaf the Pool is apportioned to the entities Viithds
invested on an equal basis for each share owneach ate acquired at a cost of $1.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous trarmaccur between individual funds for goods predid
or services rendered. These receivables and mayal® classified as “due from other funds” or “tiue
other funds” on the balance sheet.

Receivables

The City has an agreement with Greenville Countyntontain property tax rolls and to levy and cdllec
property taxes. The taxes collected are remitidtd City at the end of each month. The Counéygds

per notice for collection.

Property taxes become a lien on real and persoopépy (except vehicles) owned on December 31.
These taxes are usually levied on or before Oct®band are due without penalty by January 15.

Penalties are added to the taxes depending oratbgdid as follows:

January 16 through February 1 3% of tax
February 2 through March 16 10% of tax
March 17 through March 31 15% of tax

Both lien and the collection date for motor velsdiaxes are the last day of the month in whichnibtor
vehicle license expires.

An annual millage rate is established by City Cdwuascpart of the budget process. All the Cityalrand
personal property taxes are assessed and collacteeenville County.

All trade and property taxes receivable are shoetnof an allowance for uncollectible amounts. &rad
receivables are comprised of amounts due fromieténd individuals for a variety of types of fees,
charges, and services.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include cash and investmentstiofgmvernmental activities and business-type itietv

that are legally restricted as to their use by iapble laws, grant agreements, contributors, ordbon
covenants.
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Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policiecontinued
Capital Assets

The City's capital assets are recorded at costhfergovernment-wide financial statements but ate no
capitalized in the City’s fund financial statemen@apital assets in the Sewer Department areatiapd at
cost in the proprietary fund statements. Donatgat@l assets are recorded at estimated fair meaka at
the date of donation. The cost of land is not eigpted. Depreciation is calculated principally tba
straight-line method over the estimated usefukliokthe respective assets.

Under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, @ity is considered to be a phase 3 governmental
entity. As such, it is not required to and doe$ mport sewer infrastructure additions acquired or
improvements made prior to July 1, 2003. Accoryinthe City is only reporting infrastructure assanhd
related depreciation expense for the costs of seviistructure additions and improvements thatewer
incurred subsequent to June 30, 2013.

The City’s capitalization policy thresholds andrested useful lives are as follows:

Capitalization Threshold  Estimated Useful Life

Land $5,000
Land Improvements $5,000 25 Years
Downtown Streetscape $5,000 15 Years
Buildings $5,000 39 Years
Equipment, Vehicles

and Furniture and Fixtures $1,000 5-7 Years
Intangibles $1,000 15 - 25 Years

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs thatotiadd to the value of the asset or materiallgrekt
asset lives are not capitalized.

Compensated Absences
The City’s policy for compensated absences is l&sifo

Vacation — Employees are permitted to accumulateedaby unused vacation benefits up to 30
days of earned vacation leave with such leave Heihygvested when earned. Employees are paid
100% of their accumulated vacation when they teateiemployment for any reason. All vacation
is accrued when incurred in the government-wide @ogrietary fund financial statements. As of
June 30, 2019, employees accumulated approxima&dlQ0 hours for which management
computed an obligation of $357,090. A liabilityresported in the governmental funds financial
statements only if it has matured, for example sesult of employee resignations or retirements.
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Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policiecontinued
Compensated Absences, continued

Sick Leave — the City’s sick leave policy provides a limited accumulation of 120 days of sick
leave. Since the City has no obligation for theuatulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no
accrual for sick leave has been made.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue is reported in the governmental fimancial statements when potential revenue does
not meet both the “measurable” and “available”eci# for recognition in the current period. Uneain
revenues also arise in both government-wide and fimancial statements when resources are recéiyed
the City before it has a legal claim to them, agrvirant monies are received prior to the incugeasfc
qualifying expenses/expenditures. In subsequamnidse when both revenue recognition criteria asgt, m

or when the City has a legal claim to the resoyrttes liability for deferred revenue is removed and
revenue is recognized.

Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements angneetary fund type financial statements, long-tei@it
and other long-term obligations are reported akilili@s in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund tgtstement of net position.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of finan@altpn will sometimes report a separate sectionléberred
outflows of resources. This separate financiaéstant elementjeferred outflows of resourcagpresents
a consumption of net position that applies to artuperiod(s) and so will not be recognized asudficov
of resources (expense/expenditure) until thenaditition to liabilities, the statement of finanguasition
will sometimes report a separate section for dedeimflows of resources. This separate finantaéement
element,deferred inflows of resourcesepresents an acquisition of net position thatiep to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as on witd resources (revenue) until that time.

Fund Balance Reporting

In the fund financial statements, the City impleteenGASB No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions for the yeareshdune 30, 2015. GASB No. 54 established that
fund balance for governmental funds should be tedan the classifications that comprise a hienarch
based primarily on the extent to which the govemneebound to honor constraints on the specifippse

for which the amounts in these funds can be spEmése classifications may consist of the following
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Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policiecontinued
Fund Balance Reporting, continued

Non-spendable — generally, amounts that are natoteg to be converted to cash, such as inventories
prepaid amounts. This classification also inclusta®ie long-term amounts such as property acquired f
resale or the long-term portion of loans receivat®wever, if the eventual proceeds or collectifvom
these would be restricted, committed, or assigriedse amounts would be included in that other
classification.

Legally or Contractually Required to be Maintaidathct — amounts that are required to be maintained
intact, such as the principle of a permanent fund.

Restricted — amounts that can be used only forfspparpose because of (a) constitutional provisiof
enabling legislation of (b) externally imposed deomsts. (External constraints might be imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or even the law®gulations of other governments.

Committed — amounts that can be used only for Bpguurposes because of a formal action by the
government’s highest level of decision-making aritho This classification might also include cattual
obligation if existing resources have been comnhitte use in satisfying those contractual requinetsie
The formal action to establish constraints shoeldaken before year-end, even if the amount mighbe
determined until the subsequent period.

Assigned — amounts intended to be used for spegxifiposes but that do not meet the criteria to be
classified as restricted or committed. Intentloarstipulated by the governing body, another bedgH as
a finance committee), or by an official to whomtthathority has been given. This is the residuadf
balance classification for all governmental fungdsept the general fund. Assigned fund balanceslého
not be reported in the general fund if doing seseauhe government to report a negative unassigned
general fund balance.

Unassigned - this is the residual classificatiantii@ general fund (i.e., everything that is noanother
classification or in another fund). The generaldis the only governmental fund that can repgositive
unassigned fund balance. Other governmental fomgdbt have a negative unassigned fund balance as a
result of overspending for specific purposes foicwiamounts had been restricted, committed, ogiasdi

The City Council establishes, modifies or rescifuatgl balance commitments and assignments by passage
of an ordinance or resolution. This is done thlowagloption of the budget and subsequent budget
amendments that occur throughout the year.

When both restricted and unrestricted resourceaaiable for use, it is the City’s policy to usstricted

resources first, followed by the unrestricted, cotted, assigned and unassigned resources as they ar
needed.
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Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policiecontinued
Net Position

Net position represents the difference betweentsassel liabilities in the statement of net positiodet
position is classified as invested in capital asget of related debt, restricted and unrestri¢ted position
invested in capital assets, net of related debisisb of capital assets, net of accumulated degireci
reduced by the outstanding balances of any borgsvinsed for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Outstanding debh#dsanhot been spent is included in the same néigmos
component as the unspent proceeds. Net positioapisrted as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through enabling latyisi or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or ragjahs of other governments.

Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to fonped contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase grdensracts or other commitments for expenditures
are recorded to reserve a portion of an applicatybeopriation, is utilized in governmental fundsirarily

the General Fund. Encumbrances outstanding ateyehare reported as reservations of fund balasice a
they do not constitute expenditures or liabilitiesler accounting principles generally accepted.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhia
United States of America requires management teenealimates and assumptions that affect the reporte
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosufesoantingent assets and liabilities at the datethef
financial statements and the reported amountsvehrees, expenses and expenditures during the irgport
period. Accordingly, actual results could diffesrh those estimates.

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments that potentially subject @iy to concentration of credit risk are trade reakles,
interest bearing investments and cash. Due ttatge number in diversity of the City’s proprietdond
customer base, concentrations of credit risk vagipect to receivables are limited. The City pladiesf its
cash and cash equivalents with high-quality finanastitutions and requires deposits to be cothdiized.
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent withuating principles generally accepted in the Uni¢ates

of America. Annual appropriated budgets are adbfatethe general fund. All annual appropriatitapsse
at fiscal yearend.
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Note 3 — Deposits and Investments

The State of South Carolina General Statutes perthé City to invest in certain types of financial
instruments. Cash is maintained in demand depasitsavings accounts, certificates of deposits,
repurchase agreements, or U.S. Government Sesurifieere were no deposit or investment transaction
during the year that were in violation of the stitdutes.

As of June 30, 2019, bank balances of the Cityfmdits were $5,445,144.

Interest rate risk The City manages its exposure to declines inviames by limiting its investments to
certificates of deposit and federal notes whichlmasold and withdrawn on demand.

Credit risk —As of June 30, 2019, the City’s investment with taderal agencies is allowed under state
laws.

Concentration of credit risk Fhe City’s places no limit on the amount that nbayinvested in any one
issuer. At June 30, 2019, 100% of the City’s itwets were in the State of South Carolina Local
Government Investment Pool. At June 30, 2019,Glt¢s cash consisted of approximately 100% of
deposits with a local financial institution.

Custodial credit risk — depositslr the case of deposits, this is the risk thahaevent of a bank failure,
the City’s deposits may not be returned to it. Ty does not have a deposit policy for custodralit
risk. As of June 30, 2019, the City did not hang deposits exposed to custodial credit risk.

Custodial credit risk -nvestments- For an investment, this is the risk that, inekient of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recother value of its investments or collateral seasithat are
in the possession of an outside party.

As of June 30, 2019, the City has the followingestments:

Investment Credit Fair Investments Maturities in Years
Type Rating Value <1Yr 1-3Yrs 3-5Yrs >5 Yrs

SC State Government Local
Investment Pool * $ 51,376 $ 51,376 - - -

*The State Government Local Investment Pool issie@ in US Government Securities, which are
not considered to have credit risk. Credit Ratiiogshese investments have been disclosed.

Cash reported in the Governmental Activities/Goreental Funds totaling $274,695 represents amounts
restricted as to use by providers.

Cash reported in the Business-type Activities/Red@ary Fund of $19,413 represent funds on depatit w
the Office of the State of South Carolina StateaSueer that are restricted for debt service orCityes
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Note 3 — Deposits and Investments, continued

general obligation bonds. These amounts are iadludrestricted cash and investments for Busitygss-
Activities on the government-wide Statement of Resition and in restricted cash on the Propridtairyd
Statement of Net Position.

Note 4 - Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2019, including theicgipé allowances for uncollectible accounts, &e a
follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Receivables:
Taxes (net of allowance for uncollectibles of $32)7 $ 47,318 $ - $ 47,318
Accounts (net of allowance for uncollectibles off$0
Governmental and $0 for Business-type Activities , 336 16,926 373,655
Total receivables $ 404,047 $ 16,926 $ 420,973
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Note 5 — Capital Assets

A summary of capital assets accounted for in thegonental activities is as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Land $
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Downtown Streetscape
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and Fixtures
Intangible Assets

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation For
Downtown Streetscape
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and Fixtures
Intangible Assets
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Governmental Activities, Capital Assets, Net

Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Balances Additions Disposals Balances
928,518 $ - - $ 928,518

2,810,774 - 2,810,774 -
3,739,29 - 2,810,774 928,518
4,619,680 - - 4,619,680
5,235,078 5,932,619 37,900 11,129,797
937,829 84,580 38,604 983,805
2,066,581 93,834 79,227 2,081,188
109,807 400,732 2,875 507,664
158,273 - - 158,273
13,127,248 6,511,765 158,606 19,480,407
(2,399,672) (304,181) - (2,703,853)
(1,071,771)  (358,036) (12,606) (1,417,201)
(866,206) (45,029) (38,604) (872,631)
(1,871,417) (99,540) (79,227) (1,891,730)
(105,247) (59,588) (2,876) (161,959)
(95,563) (6,005) - (101,568)
(6,409,876)  (872,379) (133,313) (7,148,942)
6,727,3 5,639,386 25,293 12,331,465
$ 10866 $ 5639386 $ 2,836,067 $ 13,259,983
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Note 5 — Capital Assets, continued

A summary of capital assets accounted for in tisness-type activities is as follows:

Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Balances Additions Disposals Balances
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Equipment $ 254517 $ - $ - $ 254,517
Infrastructure:
Sewer Trunk Lines & Rehabilitation 2,645,777 - - 2,645,777
Tubbs Mtn Pump Station 860,260 16,946 - 877,206
Intangibles 81,790 - - 81,790
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 3,842,344 16,946 - 3,859,290
Less Accumulated Depreciation For
Equipment (225,250) (1,590) - (226,840)
Infrastructure:
Sewer Trunk Lines & Rehabilitation (1,203,981) (116,773) - (1,320,754)
Tubbs Mtn Pump Station (355,082) (34,552) - (389,634)
Intangibles (53,029) (3,671) - (56,700)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,837,342)  (156,586) - (1,993,928)
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 2,5,0 (139,640) - 1,865,362
Business-Type Actvities, Capital Assets, Net  $ 2005, $ (139,640) $ - $ 1,865,362

Depreciation was charged as direct expense toidunsfgprograms of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Police
Fire
Sanitation
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Sewer System
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities
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Note 5 — Capital Assets, continued

Amortization of the Hospitality Tax Fund’s intantgbassets was included in governmental activities
depreciation expense for the year ended June 3®. 2Bmortization expense relating to governmental
activities will be $6,004 for each of the next fivears.

Amortization of the Sewer System’s intangible asses included in business-type activities deptiecia
expense for the year ended June 30, 2019. Amdotizexpense relating to business-type activitiekhweil
$3,671 for each of the next five years.

Note 6 — Long-Term Debt

Changes in long-term debt for the year ended JOn2M.9 was as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 One Yea

Govemmental Activities
Revenue Bonds
2017 Accommodations and Hospitality

Revenue Refunding Bond $ 2,701,008 - $ (216,000)% 2,485,000 $ 221,000

2017B Accommodations and Hospitality
Revenue Bond 2,142,000 - (75,000) 2,067,000 78,000
SC Energy Office 54,611 - (8,657) 45,954 8,830
Total General Obligation Bonds 4,897,611 - (299,657) 4,597,954 307,830

Travelers Rest Public Facilties Corporation

2013A Instalment Purchase Revenue Bond 552,470 - (105,700) 446,770 108,040

2013B Instalment Purchase Revenue Bond 654,140 - (52,110) 602,030 51,280

2017 Instalment Purchase Revenue Bond 3,347,000 - (14,001) 3,332,999 17,000

Total Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds 4,553,610 - (171,811) 4,381,799 176,320

Accrued Compensated Absences 127,222 311,289 (81,421) 357,090 221,396
Governmental activities

long-term liabiities $ 9578,443% 311,289 $ (552,889) $ 9,336,843 $ 705,546

For the governmental activities, the InstallmentcRase Bonds and the Revenue Refunding Bonds are
liquidated from the general fund and the hospjtakix fund, respectively. Compensated absences are
generally liquidated from the general fund.

The 2017A Accommodations and Hospitality Tax RevenuariRéeng Bonds were issued in April 2017 for
the amount of $2,912,000 to refund series 2012 Borithe bonds are payable annually on April 1 in
incrementally increasing installments of princifileough 2029. Interest is payable semi-annualbpril

1 and October 1 through 2029 with an interesto&®54%. The issuance resulted in a net presgoev
savings of $120,720. This bond is secured byuhdgith, credit and taxing power of the City.

The 2017B Accommodations and Hospitality Tax ReeeBonds were issued in April 2017 for the
amount of $2,215,000 for capital improvements. THwnds are payable annually on April 1 in
incrementally increasing installments of princiffieough 2032. Interest is payable semi-annualljjoril
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Note 6 — Long-Term Debt, continued

1 and October 1 through 2032 with an interesto&76%. This bond is secured by the full fagiedit
and taxing power of the City.

The Travelers Rest Public Facilities Corporatid@dfporation”) Installment Purchase Improvement Bond
2013A issued in the amount of $1,047,500 on July 19, B{d8yable annually on April 1 in incrementally
increasing installments of principle through 2023erest is payable in semi-annual installmentépril 1

and October 1 through 2023 with an interest rate of 2.2P86.bonds were originally issued to finance the
cost of acquiring, constructing and renovatinglitees sold by the Corporation to the City pursutmg
Facilities Purchase and Occupancy Agreement dalgdl,) 2013. This agreement between the City and
the Corporation is still in effect at June 30, 20T®e bonds are subject to annual appropriation.

The Travelers Rest Public Facilities Corporatid@dfporation”) Installment Purchase Improvement Bond
2013B issued in the amount of $866,650 on July20%3 is payable annually on April 1 in incrememntall
increasing installments of principle through 202®erest is payable in semi-annual installmentépril 1

and October 1 through 2029 with an interest rate of 2.9986.b®nds were originally issued to finance the
cost of acquiring, constructing and renovatinglitees sold by the Corporation to the City pursutmg
Facilities Purchase and Occupancy Agreement dalgdl,) 2013. This agreement between the City and
the Corporation is still in effect at June 30, 20T®e bonds are subject to annual appropriation.

The Travelers Rest Public Facilities Corporatio€dfporation”) Installment Purchase Revenue Bond
Series 2017 was issued in May 2017 in the amoufB¢#47,000 and is payable annually on April 1 in
incrementally increasing installments of princigleough 2037. Interest is payable in semi-annual
installments on April 1 and October 1 through 20@%h an interest rate of 2.90%. The bonds were
originally issued to finance the cost of acquirimgnstructing and renovating facilities sold by the
Corporation to the City pursuant to a FacilitiesdAase and Occupancy Agreement dated July 1, 2013.
This agreement between the City and the Corporagiaill in effect at June 30, 2019. The bonds ar
subject to annual appropriation.

Debt service requirements on the governmentaligesivevenue bonds at June 30 are as follows:

Fiscal year ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 307,830 $ 121,087 $ 428,917
2021 315,007 113,144 428,151
2022 323,187 105,018 428,205
2023 332,371 96,872 429,243
2024 340,558 87,913 428,471

Thereafter 2,979,000 372,409 3,351,409

$ 4,597,953 $ 896,443 $ 5,494,396
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Debt service requirements on the governmental inesvTravelers Rest Public Facilities Corporation
installment purchase bonds at June 30, 2019 dodl@ss:

Fiscal year ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 176,320 $ 123,842 $ 300,162
2021 180,860 119,714 300,574
2022 185,310 115,149 300,459
2023 189,790 110,545 300,335
2024 196,220 104,012 300,232

Thereatfter 3,453,300 753,999 4,207,299

$ 4,381,800 $ 1,327,261 $ 5,709,061

Long-term liability transactions for business-typetivities for the year ended June 30, 2019 were as
follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 One Yea
Business-Type Activities
Bonds Payable
State Pollution Control
RevohingBond - A  $ 84,586 $ $ (21,865)$ 62,721 $ 22,361
State Pollution Control
Revoling Bond - B 42,293 (10,933) 31,360 11,181
Loan Payable 190,855 - (18,229) 172,626 18,642
Business-type activities
long-term liabiities $ 317,734 $ - $ (51,027) $ 266,707 $ 52,184

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the €itered into an agreement with a contractor ¢wige
sewer line rehabilitation over the area of the rigwn as the Travelers Rest 3 Area. The conpraw of
$877,892 was financed out of existing reserves tamulgh two separate bonds offered by the South
Carolina Water Quality Revolving Fund Authority.

The first revolving bond — A with a balance of $62, at June 30, 2019, carries an interest rate2682

and is to be repaid in quarterly installments gB$6 including principle and interest through A@U22.

The second revolving bond — B with a balance of 31 at June 30, 2019, carriers an interest rate of
2.25% and is payable in quarterly installments 2048 including principle and interest through Apri
2022. Revolving bond A is secured by the fullfatredit and taxing power of the City. Revolvimgnd

B is secured by all revenues of the City’s Sewext&Sy Fund.
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During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, theéhSGarolina Water Quality Revolving Fund Authority
loaned the City $358,039 at an interest rate &% .per annum. The purpose of the proceeds ohthes
was to fund the Tubbs Mountain Sewer Station Ptojé&bis project was completed during the year dnde
June 30, 2008 at a total cost of $858,367. Thanbal of $172,626 at June 30, 2019 is payable ireglya
installments of $5,592, including principle ancenetst through December 2027. This loan is seduwyed
revenues of the City’s Sewer System Fund.

Maturities on long-term debt of the business-tygieviies are as follows:

Fiscal year ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 52,184 $ 5563 $ 57,747
2021 53,368 4,478 57,846
2022 45,734 3,069 48,803
2022 19,940 2,430 22,370

2024 - 2028 95,481 5,183 100,664
$ 266,707 $ 20,723 $ 287,430

Note 7 — Restricted Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

As of June 30, 2019, cash and cash equivalenti&tedtby external sources included:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
Capital projects $ - % 19,413
Recreation and Tourism 1,244,161 -
Other Purposes 273,495 -
$ 1,517,656 $ 19,413
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The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Autlyo(REBA), created July 1, 2012 and governed by an
11-member Board, is the state agency responsiblddéoadministration and management of the various
Retirement Systems and retirement programs ofttte ef South Carolina, including the State Optiona
Retirement Program and the S.C. Deferred Compemns&rogram, as well as the state’s employee
insurance programs. As such, PEBA is responsibleafiministering the South Carolina Retirement
Systems’ five defined benefit pension plans. Thér&eent Funding and Administration Act of 2017,
which became effective July 1, 2017, increasecethployer and employee contribution rates, estadilish
a ceiling on the SCRS and PORS employee contributites, lowered the assumed rate of return,
required a scheduled reduction of the funding pistiand addressed various governance issues imgludi
the assignment of the PEBA Board as custodianeofd@tirement trust funds and assignment of the RSIC
and PEBA as cotrustees of the assets of the remetrust funds. By law, the State Fiscal Accouititgb
Authority (SFAA), which consists of five electedfiofals, also reviews certain PEBA Board decisions
regarding the actuary of the Systems.

For purposes of measuring the net pension lighdeferred outflows and inflows of resources eslab
pensions, and pension expense, information abeuidbciary net position of the Systems and adad#io
to/deductions from the Systems fiduciary net posithave been determined on the accrual basis of
accounting as they are reported by the Systemscéordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). For this purpose, revenues asognized when earned and expenses are recognized
when incurred. Benefit and refund expenses areggréped when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the plan. Investments are reported avédire.

PEBA issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Re@AFR) containing financial statements and
required supplementary information for the System@snsion Trust Funds. The CAFR is publicly
available through the Retirement Benefits’ linkRBBA’s website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy may be
obtained by submitting a request to PEBA, 202 Arbake Drive, Columbia, SC 29223. PEBA is
considered a division of the primary governmenthef state of South Carolina and therefore, retirgme
trust fund financial information is also includedthe comprehensive annual financial report oftate.

Plan Description

The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a-sloating multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan, was established July 1, 1945, pursuant tgtbeisions of Section 9-1-20 of the South Carolina
Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retiretreamd other benefits for teachers and employe#seof
state and its political subdivisions. SCRS coveargleyees of state agencies, public school districts
higher education institutions, other participatiogal subdivisions of government and individualsviye
elected to the South Carolina General Assembly after the 2012 general election.

The State Optional Retirement Program (State O&R)defined contribution plan that is offered as a
alternative to SCRS to certain newly hired emplgyekstate agencies, institutions of higher edooati
public school districts and individuals first eledtto the General Assembly at or after the gemdeation

in November 2012. State ORP participants direct itheestment of their funds into an account
administered by one of four third party record lexsp
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Plan Description, continued

The South Carolina Police Officers Retirement SysPORS), a cost—sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan, was established July 1, 1pG&suant to the provisions of Section 9-11-20haf t
South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of joling retirement and other benefits to police @i
and firefighters. PORS also covers peace offia@engners, probate judges and magistrates.

Membership

Membership requirements are prescribed in Titlé @ South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief summary
of the requirements under each system is presésted.

SCRS - Generally, all employees of covered empdoyee required to participate in and

contribute to the system as a condition of emplaymé& his plan covers general employees and
teachers and individuals newly elected to the S@atitolina General Assembly beginning with the
November 2012 general election. An employee merabéne system with an effective date of

membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Twaoniver. An employee member of the system
with an effective date of membership on or aftdy 3u2012, is a Class Three member.

State ORP — As an alternative to membership in SCGR®&ly hired state, public school, and
higher education employees and individuals newdgteld to the S.C. General Assembly beginning
with the November 2012 general election have th#ow@go participate in the State Optional
Retirement Program (State ORP), which is definedtrimution plan. State ORP participants
direct the investment of their funds into a plamaustered by one of four investment providers.
For this reason, State ORP programs are not caesigart of the retirement systems for financial
statement purposes. Employee and Employer cotibitzuto the State ORP are at the same rates
as SCRS. A direct remittance is required from ¢hgployers to the member’s account with
investment providers for the employee contribut{8npercent) and a portion of the employer
contribution (5 percent). A direct remittance Isoarequired to SCRS for the remaining portion of
the employer contribution (5.75 percent) and amderal death benefit contribution (.15 percent),
if applicable, which is retained by SCRS.

PORS — To be eligible for PORS membership, an eyaplonust be required by the terms of his
employment, by election or appointment, to presemalic order, protect life and property, and
detect crimes in the state; to prevent and coptagberty destruction by fire; or to serve as a peac
officer employed by the Department of Correctioing Department of Juvenile Justice, or the
Department of Mental Health. Probate judges andnays may elect membership in PORS.
Magistrates are required to participate in PORS&éovice as a magistrate. PORS members, other
than magistrates and probate judges, must alsaaebrast $2,000 per year and devote at least
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Note 8 — Retirement Plan, continued
Membership, continued

1,600 hours per year to this work, unless exemipyestatute. An employee member of the system
with an effective date of membership prior to JU/\2012, is a Class Two member. An employee
member of the system with an effective date of nmexstbp on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class
Three member

Benefits

Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the ®oGarolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the
authority to establish or amend benefit terms witha legislative change in the code of laws. Key
elements of the benefit calculation include thedfiermultiplier, years of service, and average Ifina

compensation. A brief summary of benefit termsefach system is presented below.

SCRS - A Class Two member who has separated fronceevith at least five or more years of
earned service is eligible for a monthly pensionagé 65 or with 28 years credited service
regardless of age. A member may elect early reéirg with reduced pension benefits payable at
age 55 with 25 years of service credit. A Classee@éhmember who has separated from service
with at least eight or more years of earned seingiedigible for a monthly pension upon satisfying
the Rule of 90 requirement that the total of thenier's age and the member’s creditable service
equals at least 90 years. Both Class Two and dlhese members are eligible to receive a
reduced deferred annuity at age 60 if they satibly five- or eight-year earned service
requirement, respectively. An incidental deathdbi¢rns also available to beneficiaries of active
and retired members of employers who participatéhan death benefit program. The annual
retirement allowance of eligible retirees or thairviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of
one percent or five hundred dollars every JulyQhnly those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on
July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to reedive increase. Members who retire under the
early retirement provisions at age 55 with 25 yeazrservice are not eligible for the benefit
adjustment until the second July 1 after reachiyg 80 or the second July 1 after the date they
would have had 28 years of service credit had tio¢yetired.

e PORS - A Class Two member who has separated frontsevith at least five or more years of
earned service is eligible for a monthly pensioage 55 or with 25 years of service regardless of
age. A Class Three member who has separated &ornte with at least eight or more years of
earned service is eligible for a monthly pensioagd 55 or with 27 years of service regardless of
age. Both Class Two and Class Three membersigii@eko receive a deferred annuity at age 55
with five or eight years of earned service, redpelst. An incidental death benefit is also
available to beneficiaries of active and retiredmhers of employers who participate in the death
benefit program. Accidental death benefits are pt®vided upon the death of an active member
working for a covered employer whose death was tar@aand proximate result of an injury
incurred while in the performance of duty.
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Note 8 — Retirement Plan, continued
Benefits, continued

The retirement allowance of eligible retirees @ittlsurviving annuitants is increased by the lesser
of one percent or five hundred dollars every JulyOhly those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on
July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to ree¢he increase.

Contributions

Contributions are prescribed in Title 9 of the $oGarolina Code of Laws. If the scheduled emplayed
employer contributions provided in statute, or thees last adopted by the board, are insufficient t
maintain the amortization period set in statute, oard shall increase employer contribution rakes
necessary.

After June 30, 2027, if the most recent annual acilvaluation of the Systems for funding purposes
shows a ratio of the actuarial value of systemtadsethe actuarial accrued liability of the systéhe
funded ratio) that is equal to or greater thantgidilie percent, then the board, effective on tiéfving
July first, may decrease the then current coniobutates upon making a finding that the decreaet
result in a funded ratio of less than eighty-fiwrgent. If contribution rates are decreased putdoahis
provision, and the most recent annual actuarialatein of the system shows a funded ratio of lbas t
eighty-five percent, then effective on the follogiiduly first, and annually thereafter as necesgasgy,
board shall increase the then current contributades until a subsequent annual actuarial valuatidhe
system shows a funded ratio that is equal to atgréhan eighty-five percent.

The Retirement System Funding and Administrationestablishes a ceiling on employee contribution
rates at 9 percent and 9.75 percent for SCRS afiBR€spectively. The employer contribution ratdk wi
continue to increase annually by 1 percent thralugi 1, 2022. The legislation’s ultimate scheduled
employer rate is 18.56 percent for SCRS and 2lePdept for PORS. The amortization period is
scheduled to be reduced one year for each of tktelBeyears to a twenty-year amortization period.
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Contributions, continued

Required employee contribution rates for fiscalry2&18-2019 are as follows:
Fiscal Year 2019  Fiscal Year 2018

SCRS
Employee Class Two 9.00% 9.00%
Employee Class Three 9.00% 9.00%
State ORP
Employee 9.00% 9.00%
PORS
Employee Class Two 9.75% 9.75%
Employee Class Three 9.75% 9.75%

Required employer contributions for fiscal year 2@D19 are as follows:
Fiscal Year 2019  Fiscal Year 2018

SCRS
Employer Class Two 14.41% 13.41%
Employer Class Three 14.41% 13.41%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15%
State ORP
Employer Contribution (2) 14.41% 13.41%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15%
PORS
Employer Class Two 16.84% 15.84%
Employer Class Three 16.84% 15.84%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.20% 0.20%
Employer Accidental Death Program 0.20% 0.20%

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
The NPL is calculated separately for each systednrepresents that particular system’s TPL deterthine

in accordance with GASB No. 67 less that Systemnaigcfary net position. NPL totals, as of June 30,
2018, for SCRS and PORS are presented below.
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Note 8 — Retirement Plan, continued

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position, continued
Plan Fiduciary Net

Position as a
Percentage of the
Plan Fiduciary Net  Employers' Net Pension Total Pensin
System  Total Pension Liability Position Liability (Asset) Liability
SCRS $ 48,821,730,067 $ 26,414,916,370 $ 22,406,813,697 54.1%
PORS $ 7,403,972,673 $ 4,570,430,247 $ 2,833,542,426 61.7%

The total pension liability is calculated by thesfm’s actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net posiis
reported in the System’s financial statements. figigension liability is disclosed in accordandtnthe
requirements of GASB 67 in the System’s notes &fithancial statements and required supplementary
information. Liability calculations performed blget Systems’ actuary for the purpose of satisfying t
requirements of GASB Nos. 67 and 68 are not apghkcéor other purposes, such as determining the
plans’ funding requirements.

Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of the plan involve estimabéshe reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into thaufe. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and future salary increagesounts determined regarding the net pension
liability are subject to continual revision as atttesults are compared with past expectationsand
estimates are made about the future. South Carstia statute requires that an actuarial experistucly
be completed at least once in each five-year pefincexperience report on the Systems was most
recently issued for the period ending June 30, 2015

The June 30, 2018, total pension liability (TPLgt pension liability (NPL), and sensitivity infortnan
shown in this report were determined by our comsylactuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company
(GRS) and are based on an actuarial valuation ppeef as of July 1, 2017. The total pension ligbivas
rolled-forward from the valuation date to the plafiscal year end, June 30, 2018, using generally
accepted actuarial principles.

The following table provides a summary of the actllaassumptions and methods used to calculate the
TPL as of June 30, 2018.
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Note 8 — Retirement Plan, continued

Actuarial Assumptions, continued

SCRS PORS
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry age abrm
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return (1) 7.25% 7.25%
Projected salary increases (1) 3.0% to 12.5% 3.596%
(varies by service) (varies by service)
Benefit adjustments Lesser of 1% or $500 annpally séesf 1% or $500 annualy

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependpon the member’s job category and gender. The base
mortality assumptions, the 2016 Public RetireeSaith Carolina Mortality table (2016 PRSC), was
developed using the Systems’ mortality experiembese base rates are adjusted for future improvemen
in mortality using published Scale AA projectednirthe year 2016.

Former Job Class Males Females
Educators 2016 PRSC males multiplied by 92% 2016 PRSGales multiplied by 98%

General Employees and Members offh8, o o~ Males mutipied by 1000 2016 PRSC Femabipied by 111%
General Assembly

Public Safety and Firefighters 2016 PRSC Malespieii by 125%| 2016 PRSC Females multiplied by 1111%

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pensian plvestments is based upon 30-year capital market
assumptions. The long-term expected rate of retepresents assumptions developed using an arithmet
building block approach primarily based on conseresgectations and market-based inputs. Expected
returns are net of investment fees.

The expected returns, along with the expectedtiofiaate, form the basis for the target assetatlon
adopted at the beginning of the 2018 fiscal yehe [6ng-term expected rate of return is produced by
weighting the expected future real rates of rehyrthe target allocation percentage and addingaegde
inflation and is summarized in the table below. &ctuarial purposes, the 7.25 percent assumed lannua
investment rate of return used in the calculatibime TPL includes a 5.00 percent real rate ofrretund a
2.25 percent inflation component.
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Long-Term Expected Rate of Return, continued

Long-term
Target Expected Expected
Asset Arithmetic Real Portfolio Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return
Global Equity 47.0%

Global Public Equity 33.0% 6.99% 2.31%

Private Equity 9.0% 8.73% 0.79%

Equity Options Strategies 5.0% 5.52% 0.28%
Real Assets 10.0%

Real estate (Private) 6.0% 3.54% 0.21%

Real estate (REITS) 2.0% 5.46% 0.11%

Infrastructure 2.0% 5.09% 0.10%
Opportunistic 13.0%

GRAA/Risk Parity 8.0% 3.75% 0.30%

Hedge Funds (non-PA) 2.0% 3.45% 0.07%

Other Opportunistic Strategies 3.0% 3.75% 0.11%
Diversified Credit 18.0%

Mixed Credit 6.0% 3.05% 0.18%

Emerging Markets Debt 5.0% 3.94% 0.20%

Private Debt 7.0% 3.89% 0.27%
Conservative Fixed Income 12.0%

Core Fixed Income 10.0% 0.94% 0.09%

Cash and Short Duration (Net) 2.0% 0.34% 0.01%

Total Expected Real Return 100.0% 5.03%

Inflations for Actuarial Purposes 2.25%

Total Expected Nominal Return 7.28%
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Note 8 — Retirement Plan, continued
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the TPL waspei2ent. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that conwitifrom participating employers in SCRS and PORS
will be made based on the actuarially determinggkraased on provisions in the South Carolina ©@bde
Laws. Based on those assumptions, the System&digunet position was projected to be available to
make all the projected future benefit paymentsuofent plan members. Therefore, the long-term explec
rate of return on pension plan investments wasegp all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the TPL.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table presents the collective NPL tbé participating employers calculated using the
discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as whaethployers’ NPL would be if it were calculated useng
discount rate that is 1.00 percent lower (6.25q@)cor 1.00 percent higher (8.25 percent) tharctineent
rate.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liabilty to Changethe Discount Rate

1.00% Decreasg Current Discount Ral| 1.00% Increase
System (6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
SCRS $ 1,474,236 $ 1,153,717 $ 924,576
PORS $ 3,416,381 % 2,534,172% 1,811,569

Net Pension Liability

At June 30, 2019, the City reported a net pensiahility of $1,153,717 and $2,534,172 for its
proportionate shares of the SCRS and PORS netqoelebilities, respectively. The net pension ili&p

was measured as of July 1, 2016, and the totaigrehability used to calculate the net pensiorbiliy

was determined by an actuarial valuation as of tdae. The City’s proportionate shares of the net
pension liabilities were based on a projectiorhef €ity’s long-term share of contributions to tlegion

plan relative to the projected contributions ofpaltticipating entities, actuarially determinedt J&ne 30,
2019, the City's proportionate shares of the SCR& RORS plans were .005149 percent and .089435
percent respectively, for June 30, 2019.

Pension Expense

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recedrpension expense for the SCRS plan of $125,047.
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recedmension expense for the PORS plan of $283,693.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflowsf Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2019, the City reported deferred owslof resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:
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For the SCRS plan, there were total deferred outflof resources of $238,723 consisting of diffeesnc
between expected and actual experience of $47856et difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments of $57,12gds in proportion and differences between employe
contributions and proportionate share of contrdmgiof $54,727, and City contributions subsequettie
measurement date of $79,015. There were deferfiesvs of resources of $80,241 for the SCRS plan
consisting of differences between expected andibeigerience.

For the PORS plan, there were total deferred augflof resources of $650,223 consisting of diffeesnc
between expected and actual experience of $245/1§ et difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments of $156,9@#ges in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and proportionate shareoafributions of $52,968, and City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date of $202,30&e Were deferred inflows of resources of $309,712
for the PORS plan consisting of differences betwesgrected and actual experience.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflowsf Resources Related to Pensions, continued

The $79,015 and $202,306 reported as deferrecbwustibf resources resulting from the City’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement dated @G CRS and PORS plans, respectively, during the
year ended June 30, 2019 will be recognized adutien of the net pension liabilities in the yeading
June 30, 2020.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows ofurees and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expenselksvs for the SCRS and PORS plans, respectively:

For the SCRS plan, $58,815 will be recognizedHerfiscal years 2020. For fiscal year 2021 $25,163
will be recognized. For fiscal year 2022 $(3,4%8) be recognized and $(1,058) will be recognined
2023.

For the PORS plan, $109,064 will be recognizedHerfiscal years 2020. For fiscal year 2021 $6B,23
will be recognized. For fiscal year 2022 $(23,588) be recognized and $(3,429) will be recogniied
2023.

Covered Payroll and Contributions

The payroll for City employees covered by the SGR&8ed $548,334 and $533,575 for the year ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018, while the payroll for P@B&red employees totaled $1,201,341 and
$1,237,911, respectively.

The City’s contributions to SCRS and PORS are sumetas follows:
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Covered Payroll and Contributions, continued
Emloyer Employee

Year Ended Percent SCRS PORS Percent SCRS PORS

June 30, 2019 100% $ 79,015% 202,306 100% $ 49,350 $ 117,131
June 30, 2018 100% $ 71,552% 196,085 100% $ 48,022 $ 120,696
June 30, 2017 100% $ 56,841% 172,139 100% $ 43,141 $ 114,926

Note 9 — Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss retatio liability, theft or impairment of assets, s or
omissions, injuries to employees and natural disast Commercial liability and property insurance
coverage is purchased to protect against losses fihese risks. The City does not maintain a self-
insurance fund.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the @d not experience any significant uninsurednotai
Accordingly, there was no liability or expense nelenl for actual claims, and management does not
believe any provision for unasserted claims is s&aey.

Note 10 — Legal Matters

The City is engaged in routine litigation inciddrttathe conduct of its business and municipalieffaln
the opinion of its Counsel, no legal proceedings nding against the City, not covered by insweanc
which would inhibit the City’s ability to perfornts operations or materially affect its financiahddion.

Note 11 — Commitments

The city maintains an agreement with Greenville i@puwhereby Greenville County agrees to be
responsible for the operation, staffing, fundingl anaintenance of the Detention Center. The City is
allowed to house sentenced and pre-sentenced erssam the Detention Center. Greenville County
receives a per diem rate established annually Hadtige for the twelve-month period of July 1 thgh
June 30. The per diem rate was $55.52 and thijadtéees paid to Greenville County were $15,568

the year ended June 30, 2019.

Note 12 — Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor ageneee subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Adigallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applte funds. The amount, if any, of expendituresctvh
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be detexdhat this time although the government expects suc
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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Note 13 — Tax Abatements

Greenville County provides tax abatements undeiirfdieu of Tax and Special Source Revenue Credit
Program (FILOT and SSRC). FILOT and SSRC offenialdial incentive packages by abating property
taxes to attract new business to the County amdtéan current businesses. The Fee-in-Lieu of arak
Special Source Revenue Credit Program was estatllish SC Code Title 12, Chapter 44 and Title 4,
Chapter 12 as SC Code Sections 4-29-68, 4-1-1702at-70. The City of Travelers Rest’'s property
tax revenues were reduced by $49,185 for the figeat ended June 30, 2019 under agreements entered
into by Greenville County. These agreements datae to economic development programs.

Note 14 — Projects with Other Government Agencies

During 2009 — 2010 fiscal year, the City issuedceaagal obligation bond of $900,000 to cover itstipor

of the cost of a tract of land purchased in conjoncwith the Greenville County Recreation Depanmine
(the “Department”). During the 2010 — 2011 fisgehr, the City and the Department demolished the
buildings on this tract and completed other cleprattivities to provide park and recreation fa@tto

the citizens of the City of Travelers Rest and @Gwike County. During the 2010 — 2011 fiscal year,
bond proceeds totaling $197,820 were issued farghdject. The City also shares some costs with th
Department to maintain the Swamp Rabbit Trail, Wwhi@nsverses the City of Travelers Rest and the
other areas of Greenville County. The Swamp Rabkatll and the new Downtown Streetscape have
become an attraction for businesses, tourism ardagon for the City of Travelers Rest.

Note 15 — Subsequent Events

Subsequent events were evaluated through Decemi2€x19, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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Budget and Actual
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Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes
Property Taxes $ 2080000 $ 2080000 $ 2131142 $ 51,142
Feein Lieu 160,000 160,000 160,000 -
Accommodations Tax 39,000 39,000 (16,036) (55,036)
Manufacturers Tax 43,000 43,000 43,641 641
Merchants Inventory Tax 15,000 15,000 18,977 3,977
Telecommuications Tax 20,000 20,000 17,453 (2,547)
Total Taxes 2,357,000 2,357,000 2,355,177 (1,823)
License and Permits
Business License 360,000 360,000 435,694 75,694
Franchise Taxes (Fees) 580,000 580,000 605,118 25,118
Insurance Fees 580,000 580,000 712,709 132,709
Building Permits and Inspection Fees 66,000 66,000 111,946 45,946
Total License and Fees 1,586,000 1,586,000 1,865,467 279,467
Other Income
Fines and Forfeitures 60,000 60,000 33,734 (26,266)
Investment Income 2,000 2,000 4,972 2,972
School District 28,000 28,000 28,000 -
Aid to Subdivisions 85,000 85,000 104,627 19,627
Public Works Fees 42,000 42,000 41,180 (820)
County Recreation 28,500 28,500 31,766 3,266
Other Income 24,000 24,000 20,728 (3,272)
Total Other Income 269,500 269,500 265,007 (4,493)
Total Revenues 4,212,500 4,212,500 4,485,651 273,151
Expenditures
Administrative
Salaries 265,000 265,000 261,500 3,500
Miscellaneous 7,400 7,400 7,874 (474)
Supplies 2,000 2,000 2,452 (452)
Employee Training and Travel 7,700 7,700 3,302 4,398
Financial Services 43,000 43,000 68,288 (25,288)
Total Administrative 325,100 325,100 343,416 (18,316)
Mayor/Council
Salaries 33,600 33,600 33,600 -
Seminars/Travel 20,000 20,000 12,198 7,802
Council Expenses 5,200 5,200 4,126 1,074
Total Mayor/Council 58,800 58,800 49,924 8,876

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Informaiton. 52
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Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Legal
Council Advice 5,000 5,000 6,163 (1,163)
Total Legal 5,000 5,000 6,163 (1,163)
General Government
Tort Liability Insurance 30,000 30,000 33,840 (3,840)
Workers' Compensation Insurance 85,000 85,000 83,289 1,711
Unemployment Payroll Taxes 5,000 5,000 2 4,998
Equipment Lease 2,000 2,000 1,358 642
Utilities 24,500 24,500 42,104 (17,604)
Street Lights 43,000 43,000 55,062 (12,062)
Postage/Postage Meter 5,200 5,200 5,229 (29)
Advertisement/Ads 1,000 1,000 631 369
Vehicle Insurance 31,000 31,000 30,482 518
Casualty Insurance 8,000 8,000 14,138 (6,138)
Envelopes/Letterhead 1,400 1,400 1,395 5
Traffic Signals 1,000 1,000 881 119
Equipment 3,000 3,000 - 3,000
Dues 3,200 3,200 2,684 516
Telephone 18,500 18,500 17,041 1,459
Employee Appreciation 3,000 3,000 962 2,038
Supplies 1,150 1,150 924 226
Sales and Use Tax Expense 500 500 120 380
Social Security/Medicare 144,000 144,000 131,401 12,599
Retirement 264,800 264,800 281,061 (16,261)
Group Health Insurance 467,400 467,400 431,230 36,170
Total General Government 1,142,650 1,142,650 1,133,834 8,816
Municpal Court
Salaries 74,825 74,825 69,984 4,841
Schools and Seminars 3,000 3,000 2,310 690
Cellular Phones 900 900 614 286
Supplies 3,000 3,000 626 2,374
Travel Expense 2,000 2,000 1,431 569
Court Operations 2,000 2,000 3,392 (1,392)
Legal 20,000 20,000 9,747 10,253
Jail Fees 80,000 80,000 15,503 64,497
Total Municipal Court 185,725 185,725 103,607 82,118
See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Informaiton. 53
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Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Police
Salaries 849,000 849,000 787,788 61,212
Overtime 35,000 35,000 40,671 (5,671)
Vehicle Operating 40,000 40,000 41,565 (1,565)
Vehicle Maintenance 23,000 23,000 27,639 (4,639)
Telephone/Paper 6,600 6,600 7,400 (800)
Equipment Repair 3,000 3,000 2,996 4
Supplies 4,500 4,500 5,798 (1,298)
Uniforms and Clothing 9,500 9,500 12,507 (3,007)
Employee Training 5,500 5,500 5,081 419
Other Expenditures 45,100 45,100 55,427 (10,327)
Total Police 1,021,200 1,021,200 986,872 34,328
Public Services
Salaries 46,125 46,125 53,748 (7,623)
Overtime 1,500 1,500 958 542
Telephone 1,200 1,200 1,111 89
Building Permits and Maintenance 21,300 21,300 24,242 (2,942)
Street and Sign Repair 30,500 30,500 34,841 (4,341)
Vehicle Operating 8,000 8,000 6,518 1,482
Vehicle Maintenance 3,500 3,500 5,067 (1,567)
Animal Control 1,550 1,550 1,255 295
Supplies 16,000 16,000 13,843 2,157
Engineering 2,500 2,500 - 2,500
Other Expenditures 16,200 16,200 5,753 10,447
Total Maintenance 148,375 148,375 147,336 1,039
Fire
Salaries 594,500 594,500 602,278 (7,778)
Non-volunteer Overtime 15,000 15,000 7,707 7,293
Utilities 18,500 18,500 16,478 2,022
Building Maintenance 10,000 10,000 6,822 3,178
Vehicle Operating 14,000 14,000 18,331 (4,331)
V ehicle Maintenance 30,000 30,000 39,625 (9,625)
Telephone and Communications 5,500 5,500 3,845 1,655
Equipment Repair 13,000 13,000 14,065 (1,065)
Supplies 2,500 2,500 1,344 1,156
Uniforms and Clothing 10,500 10,500 3,200 7,300
Employee Training 7,200 7,200 5,956 1,244
Fire Safety and Prevention 9,600 9,600 1,196 8,404

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Informaiton. 54



City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina
Schedule of Revenues, Expendituresand Changesin Fund Balances - General Fund
Budget and Actual
General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Equipment 19,000 19,000 20,042 (1,042)
Other Expenditures 8,800 8,800 14,604 (5,804)
Building Codes and Enforcement 4,000 4,000 5,567 (1,567)
Total Fire 762,100 762,100 761,060 1,040
Sanitation
Contract Services 222,000 222,000 241,798 (19,798)
Total Sanitation 222,000 222,000 241,798 (19,798)
Capital Outlay
General Government - Capital |mprovements 36,000 36,000 1,910 34,090
Police Department Equipment 33,250 33,250 25,461 7,789
Motor Vehicles - Police 94,000 94,000 93,834 166
Fire Department Equipment - - - -
Total Capital Outlay 163,250 163,250 121,205 42,045
Debt Service 286,875 286,875 318,633 (31,758)
Total Expenditures 4,321,075 4,321,075 4,213,848 107,227
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Uunder) Expenditures (108,575) (108,575) 271,803 380,378
Other Financing Sour ces (Uses)
Transfersin 108,575 108,575 108,575 -
Transfers out - - (239,445) 239,445
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 108,575 108,575 (130,870) 239,445
Net Change in Fund Balance - - 140,933 619,823
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,576,396 2,576,396 2,576,396 -
Fund Balance, end of year $ 2576396 $ 2576396 $ 2,717,329 $ 619,823

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Informaiton. 55



City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina
Schedule of Revenues, Expendituresand Changesin Fund Balances - General Fund
Budget and Actual
Hospitality Tax Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes
Hospitality Tax $ 720,000 $ 720,000 $ 876,904 $ 156,904
Sponsorship Revenue 10,000 10,000 6,900 (3,100)
Rental Income 8,000 8,000 4,700 (3,300)
Investment Income 1,000 1,000 975 (25)
Total Revenues 739,000 739,000 889,479 150,479
Expenditures
Ampitheater Program 45,000 45,000 37,383 7,617
Downtown Maintenance 20,000 20,000 40,602 (20,602)
Other Expenditures 91,500 91,500 94,298 (2,798)
Capital Outlay 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
Debt Service 454,875 454,875 423,600 31,275
Total Expenditures 621,375 621,375 595,883 25,492
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Uunder) Expenditures 117,625 117,625 293,596 175,971
Other Financing Sour ces (Uses)
Transfers out (65,000) (65,000) (390,960) (325,960)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (65,000) (65,000) (390,960) (325,960)
Net Change in Fund Balance 52,625 52,625 (97,364) (149,989)
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,007,143 1,007,143 1,007,143 -
Fund Balance, end of year $ 1059768 $ 1,059,768 $ 909,779 $ (149,989)
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City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina
Schedule of Revenues, Expendituresand Changesin Fund Balances - General Fund
Budget and Actual
Accommodations Tax Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes
Accommodations Tax $ 85,000 $ 85,000 $ 103,001 $ 18,001
Investment Income 700 700 2,901 2,201
Total Revenues 85,700 85,700 105,902 20,202
Expenditures
Current
Administrative 25,000 25,000 17,420 7,580
Total Expenditures 25,000 25,000 17,420 7,580
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Uunder) Expenditures 60,700 60,700 88,482 27,782
Other Financing Sour ces (Uses)
Transfers out (20,000) (20,000) (20,000) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (20,000) (20,000) (20,000) -
Net Change in Fund Balance 40,700 40,700 68,482 27,782
Fund balance, beginning of year 265,900 265,900 265,900 -
Fund Balance, end of year $ 306,600 $ 306,600 $ 334,382 $ 27,782

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Informaiton. 57



City of TravelersRest, South Carolina

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Employee Pension Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Actua
Proportion of the Proportionate Share Covered Net Pension Liability Fiduciary Net Position
Net Pension of the Net Pension Member as a Percentage as a Percentage of
System Liability Liability Payroll of Covered Payroll Total Pension Liability
SCRS
2014 0.004750% $ 851,981 $ 429,070 198.56% 59.90%
2015 0.004750% $ 817,793 $ 454,037 180.12% 59.90%
2016 0.004786% $ 925,727 $ 512,090 180.77% 56.99%
2017 0.005288% $ 1,129,510 $ 498,164 226.73% 52.90%
2018 0.004937% $ 1,111,398 $ 533,575 208.29% 53.30%
2019 0.005149% $ 1,153,717 $ 548,334 210.40% 54.10%
PORS
2014 0.09903% $ 2,052,844 $ 1,172,329 175.11% 67.50%
2015 0.09903% $ 1,895,838 $ 1,238,501 153.08% 67.50%
2016 0.09643% $ 2,106,419 $ 1,327,526 158.67% 64.60%
2017 0.10346% $ 2,624,135 $ 1,243,785 210.98% 60.40%
2018 0.09298% $ 2,547,134 $ 1,237,911 205.76% 60.90%
2019 0.089435% $ 2,547,134 $ 1,201,341 212.02% 61.70%
See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.
Additional information will be displayed as they become available. 58



City of TravelersRest, South Carolina

Schedule of Contributionsto Employee Pension Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2019

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
SCRS
Contractually required contribution $ 79,015 $ 71552 $ 56,841 $ 55,869 $ 48809 $ 46,125
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 79,015 71,552 56,841 55,869 48,809 46,125
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered payroll $ 548334 $ 533575 $ 498,164 $ 512,090 $ 454,037 $ 429,070
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 14.41% 13.41% 11.41% 10.91% 10.75% 10.75%
PORS
Contractually required contribution $ 202,306 $ 196,085 $ 172,139 $ 177,092 $ 161,129 $ 152,520
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 202,306 196,085 172,139 177,092 161,129 152,520
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered payroll $ 1201341 $ 1237911 $ 1243785 $ 1327526 $ 1238501 $ 1,172,329
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 16.84% 15.84% 13.84% 13.34% 13.01% 13.01%

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.
Additional information will be displayed as they become available. 59



City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City prepares an annual budget on the General Fund, Hospitality Tax Fund and Accommodations
Tax Fund. The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1. Atleast forty days prior to July 1, the Administration Committee submits to the City Council a
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. One public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. Priorto Jduly 1, the budget islegally enacted through the passage of an ordinance of which two
readings are required.

4. The Administration Committee is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments
within any fund; however, the revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be
approved by the City Council.

5. Thebudget for the City is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP).

Note 2 — Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2019, revenues exceeded expenditures in the General Fund by $140,933.
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City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2019

Note 3 - Net Pension Liability

The following table provides a summary for the actuarial methods and assumptions used in cal cul ations of
the actuarially determined contributions for the SCRS and PORS plan:

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Asset valuation method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Inflation rate

Projected salary increases

Investment rate of return

Mortality

Comment on the development of
the actuarially determined and
actual contribution rate

SCRS PORS
July 1, 2016 July 1, 2016
Entry age normal Entry age normal
5-year smoothed 5yeaer-smoothed

Level percent of payroll
30years variable, not to exceed 30 years
2.25%

3.5% plus step-rate increases for
memebers with less than 15 years of
service.

7.25%

The 2016 public retirees of South
Carolina mortality tables for meles and
females, both projected at Scale AA from
theyear 2016. Male rates multiplied by
100% for non-educators and 92% for
educators. Female rates multiplied by
111% for non-educators and 98% for
educators.

Contribution rate for fiscal year 2018 is
determined in accordance with the
Retirement System Funding and
Administration Act of 2017.

Level percent of payroll
30years variable, not to exceed 30 years
2.25%

3.5% plus step-rate increases for
memebers with less than 15 years of
service.

7.25%

The 2016 public retirees of South
Carolina mortality tables for males and
females, both projected at Scale AA from
theyear 2016. Male rates multiplied by
125% and female rates are multiplied by
111%.

Contribution rate for fiscal year 2018 is
determined in accordance with the
Retirement System Funding and
Administration Act of 2017.
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City of TravelersRest, South Carolina
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Fund Balances
Budget and Actual
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Operating Revenues
Charges for Services
Sewer Service Collection Fees $ 230,000 $ 230,000 $ 251,358 $ 21,358
Sewer Tap Fees 16,000 16,000 5,200 (10,800)
Sewer Impact Fees 65,000 65,000 2,400 (62,600)
WCRSA Sewer Impact Fee 5,000 5,000 - (5,000)
Engineer Evaluation Fee 1,500 1,500 450 (1,050)
Total Operating Revenues 317,500 317,500 259,408 (58,092
Operating Expenses
Maintenance and Repairs
Blockage 5,000 5,000 3,720 1,280
General Repairs 25,000 25,000 3,096 21,904
Engineering 15,000 15,000 4,121 10,879
Pump Station 27,000 27,000 23,851 3,149
ROW Clearance 10,000 10,000 5,290 4,710
Sewer Line Cleaning - MOM 15,000 15,000 - 15,000
Sewer Rehabilitation 50,000 50,000 - 50,000
Engineering - EPA 15,000 15,000 - 15,000
Salaries 23,575 23,575 20,410 3,165
Miscellaneous 3,200 3,200 7,875 (4,675)
Total Expenditures 188,775 188,775 68,363 120,412
Operating Income 128,725 128,725 191,045 62,320
Nonoper ating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Earnings 1,000 1,000 3,251 2,251
Interest on Long-Term Debt (14,000) (14,000) (6,720) 7,280
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (13,000) (13,000) (3,469) 9,531
Income Before Transfers 187,576
Transfers out - - - -
Changein Net Position, Budgetary Basis 115,725 115,725 187,576 71,851

Reconciliation of actual budgetary basis amount to proprietary fund statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Changein Net Position, Budgetary Basis $ 187,576
Depreciation (156,586)
Change in Net Position - Proprietary Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Net Position  $ 30,990
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City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

Schedule of Court Fines, Assessments and Surchar ges
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Tota Fines $ 36,591
Conviction Surcharge 2,500
DUI Assessment 3,081
DUS Assessment 1,200
Other Assessments 49,734

Tota 93,106

Amount Allocated to State

Law Surcharges 9,565
DUI Assessment 4,281
88.84% of Other Assessments 35,686

49 532

Allocated to Victim Assistance Fund

Conviction Surcharge 2,500
11.18% of Other Assessments 4,483
6,983

Unrestricted Revenue Retained $ 36,591
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City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina
Notes to Supplementary Information
June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City prepares an annual budget for the Sewaprketary Fund. The City follows these
procedures in establishing the budgetary dataatefiiein the financial statements:

1. At least forty days prior to July 1, the Adminigiom Committee submits to the City
Council a proposed operating budget for the figeakr beginning July 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the noédimaincing them.

2. One public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpapenments.

3. Prior to July 1, the budget is legally enacted tigiothe passage of an ordinance of
which two readings are required.

4. The Administration Committee is authorized to tfenbudgeted amounts between
departments within any fund; however, the revisithad alter the total expenditures of
any fund must be approved by the City Council.

5. The budget for the City is adopted on a basis stesi with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP).

The budget for the Proprietary Fund is preparedgutie cash basis of accounting, which is a
basis of accounting other than generally acceptedumting principles. Changes to the budgets
made during the year, if any, are approved by tiye O'he City’s original budgets were not
amended during the year ended June 30, 2019.

Since the City’s Proprietary Fund budget is preparging a basis of accounting other than
generally accepted accounting principles for petary funds, the budgetary companion
schedule presented for the Proprietary Fund insladeconciliation of actual budgetary basis
amounts.

Note 2 — Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2019, revenues excegdedses in the Proprietary Fund by
$30,990.
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HIGHSMITH & HIGHSMITH, LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Member 329 S Main Street Member
South Carolina Association of Travelers Rest, South Carolina 29690 American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (864) 834-3868 Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report On Internal Control Ov er Financial Reporting And On
Compliance And Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Rnancial Statements Performed In
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditiagdards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to finanaiglita contained irGovernment Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the UnitedeStathe financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each mijod, and the aggregate remaining fund infornmatb

the City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina, asraf #or the year ended June 30, 2019, and the delate
notes to the financial statements, which colletyigemprise the City of Travelers Rest, South Gaedé
basic financial statements, and have issued owortrépereon dated December 9, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the fina@tatements, we considered the City of Travétes,
South Carolina’s internal control over financiapoeting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstafarethe purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose @ressing an opinion on the effectiveness of thg it
Travelers Rest, South Carolina’s internal contéatcordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Travelers Rest, Sdtdholina’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a contimésdnot allow
management or employees, in the normal course rédrpgng their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basisterial weaknessis a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such thatrthiss a reasonable possibility that a material tatssent

of the entity’s financial statements will not beepented, or detected and corrected on a timelysbAsi
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficienciagnternal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enoughetidt mttention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for thriled purpose described in the first paragrapthisf
section and was not designed to identify all deficies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Givendhiesitations, during our audit we did not identdpy
deficiencies in internal control that we considebé material weaknesses. However, material weakses
may exist that have not been identified.
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To the Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance abouthwhéhe City of Travelers Rest, South Carolina’s
financial statements are free from material misst&int, we performed tests of its compliance wittage
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, ancdhgaegreements, noncompliance with which could reave
direct and material effect on the determinatiorfilmdncial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was aroibbjective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of ous t#isclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported usernment Auditing Sandards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to descrileestope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, andmptovide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. Thipoet is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance witlisovernment Auditing Slandards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is sattable for any other purpose.

Righomith & Highomith, LLE

Highsmith & Highsmith, LLC
Travelers Rest, South Carolina

December 9, 2019

66



